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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9404 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9404
Fax: 603-271-4232 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

June 20, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
And the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health & Human Services, Office of Human Services, Bureau of
Elderly and Adult Services, to exercise a renewal option to an existing agreement with Granite United
Way (Vendor 160015-B001), 22 Concord Street Floor 2, Manchester, NH, 03101, for the continuation
of system support Administration for the Refer 7 database that is used by the Department and its
contractors to provide information and referral services to citizens in New Hampshire, by increasing
the price limitation by $69,609 from $158,831 to an amount not to exceed $228,440, and extending
the completion date from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017, effective July 1, 2016 or date of Governor
and Council approval, whichever is later. Governor and Executive Council approved the contract on
September 17, 2014 (item #11) and an amendment June 24, 2015 (ltem #67). 48% Federal and 52%
General Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Years 2017,
with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified, without approval from Governor and
Executive Council.

Please see attached financial details.
EXPLANATION

Approval of this Amendment will allow the Department to continue to provide the system
support Administration for the Refer 7 database that is used by the Department and its contractors to
provide information and referral services to citizens in New Hampshire.

The Contractor will ensure that the information in the database is updated and accurate in
accordance with the National Alliance for Information and Referral Standards, and that information
reflects the full range of Medicaid long term services and supports enabling citizens of New
Hampshire to have accurate and reliable information. The database is a searchable web-based
resource that is available to the citizens of New Hampshire that provides information about the names
of agencies who provide long term services and supports in the community, the specific types of
services they offer and the conditions under which those services are typically available.

Additionally, the Department and the New Hampshire ServiceLink Contractors use the
database as a tool to provide Information, Referral and Options Counseling services to citizens in
New Hampshire by documenting calls/contacts, demographics, options counseling activity, client
follow up activities, case notes, and person centered action plans. Refer 7 also documents
performance tracking, quality performance monitoring, as well as the ability to track client records and
to generate reports.

The Contractor will train additional Department staff and other contractors in the skills needed
to utilize the Refer 7 database to better serve their clients as well as enhance and expand Refer 7
database business operating standards.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
And the Honorable Council
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This Contractor was selected through a competitive bid process.

The original Agreement and Governor and Council letter contains an option to renew the
contract for up to two additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
performance of services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council. The Department and
the Contractor have agreed to extend the contract for one additional year. Approval of this
amendment utilizes the final renewal option.

Should Governor and Executive Council decide not to authorize this request, New Hampshire
citizens who directly benefit and utilize the Refer 7 database resources may not be able to access
accurate, consistent, comprehensive and unbiased information on the full range of long term services
and supports targeted to all populations and income levels. Additionally, it is likely the Department’s
development of the No Wrong Door approach to serving its customers and training additional
Department staff and other contractors in the skills needed to utilize the Refer 7 database to better
serve their clients will be delayed.

The Contractor's compliance with the contract requirements will be monitored by the
Department through reporting and a work plan.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds:
48% federal funds from:
e Medicaid, CFDA #93.778, FAIN #NH20144;
e Administration for Children & Families, Social Services Block Grant; CFDA #93.667,
FAIN # G1601NHSOSR,;
e Administration for Community Living, Family Caregiver Support Title Il E, CFDA
#93.052, FAIN #16AANHT3FC;
e Administration for Community Living, State Health Insurance Assistance Program,
CFDA #93.324, FAIN #90SA003
52% general funds

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Marilee Nihan, MBA,
Deputy Commissioner

Approved by:

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission Is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Granite United Way

1 year extension SFY17

05-95-48-481010-78720000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, ADM ON AGING GRANTS

. Current Increased . ‘g
SFY | Class/Object | Class Title Activity Modified (Decreased) | ReVised Modified
Number Budget
Budget Budjgt
2015 | 570-500928 Fa"c‘;"if’/;are 48130316 $10,094.15 $0.00 $10,094.15
2016 | 570-500928 Fa"c‘a"i{/;are 48130316 $26,103.85 $26,103.85
2017 | 570-500928 Far'c‘;"i{/;are 48130316 $0.00 $21.001.00 $21.001.00
Sub Total $36,198.00 $21,001.00 $57,199.00

05-95-48-481010-89250000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, MEDICAID SERVICES GRANTS

. Current Increased . e
SFY | Class/Object | Class Title Activity Modified (Decreased) | Revised Modified
: Number Budget
Budget Budg_et
2015 | 102-500731 | Contractsfor 0150461 $6,512.01 $0.00 $6,512.01
Prog Svc
2016 | 102-500731 | Contractsfor | q1a0461 $7,291.99 $0.00 $7,291.99
Prog Svc
2017 | 102:500731 | Contractsfor | o046t $0.00 $4,000.00 $4.000.00
Prog Svc :
Sub Total $13,804.00 $4,000.00 $17,804.00

05-95-48-481010-92550000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

. Current Increased . i g
SFY | Class/iObject | Class Title Activity Modified (Decreased) | Revised Modified
Number Budget
Budget Budget
Information &
2015 545-500387 Referral 48130205 $6,838.14 $6,838.14
Contracts
Information &
2016 545-500387 Referral 48130205 $13,751.86 $13,751.86
Contracts
Information &
2017 545-500387 | - Referral 48130205 $0.00 $10,295.00 $10,295.00
Contracts
Sub Total $20,590.00 $10,295.00 $30,885.00
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05-95-48-481010-95650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, SERVICELINK

. Current Increased . -
SFY | Class/Object| Class Title | ACtVIYY Modified | (Decreased) |TeVised Modified
Number Budget
Budggt Budget

2015 | 102-500731 | Contractsfor 1 a4 40091 $17,615.00 $0.00 $17.,615.00
Prog Svc

2016 | 102-500731 | Contractsfor | 4q.40091 $30,425.00 $0.00 $30,425.00
Prog Svc

2017 | 102-500731 | Contractsfor | 40440004 $0.00 $24,018.00 $24,018.00
Prog Svc

Sub Total $48,040.00 $24,018.00 $72,058.00

05-95-48-481510-61800000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, MEDICAL SERVICES, LTC ASSESSMENT & COUNSELING

.. Current Increased . .
SFY Class/Object | Class Title Activity Modified (Decreased) Revised Modified
Number Budget
Budget Budget

2015 | 550-500308 | ASSessSMent | 4q430080 $6,838.14 $0.00 $6,838.14
and Counseling

2016 | 550-500398 | ASSessment [ 4q43500 $13,751.86 $0.00 $13,751.86
and Counseling

2017 | 550-500398 | ASSessSMent | 4q450080 1$0.00 $10,295.00 $10,295.00
and Counseling

Sub Total $20,590.00 $10,295.00 $30,885.00

05-95-49-49050000-29850000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: DIV OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, BALANCE

INCENTIVE PROGRAM BIP

. . Current Increased . .
SFY |ClassiObject | Class Title | Actvity Modified | (Decreased) |TeVised Modified
Number Budget
Budget Budget

2015 | 102-500731 | Contractsfor i 49053316 §13,024.69 $0.00 $13,024.69
Prog Svc

2016 | 102-500731 | Contractsfor | 49053316 $6,584.31 $0.00 $6,584.31
Prog Svc

2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for 4 49053316 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Prog Svc

Sub Total $19,609.00 $0.00 $19,609.00

Total Granite United Way
. . Current Increased . cer
SFY | Class/Object| Class Title Activity Modified (Decreased) Revised Modified
Number Budget
Budget Budget

2015 $60,922.13 $0.00 $60,022.13

2016 $97,908.87 $0.00 $97,908.87

2017 $0.00 $69,609.00 $69,609.00

Total Contract $158,831.00 $69,609.00 $228,440.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.nh.gov/ doit

Denis Goulet
Commissioner

June 16, 2016

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency’s request to enter into an amendment with Granite United Way, 22 Concord
Street, Floor 2, Manchester, NH 03101, for the continuation of system support administration for the
Refer 7 database as described below and referenced as DolIT No. 2015-058B.

The purpose of this agreement is to enable the Granite United Way to continue to service
the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care
Services, Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services with system support administration for
the Refer 7 database that is used by the Department and its contractors to provide
information and referral services to citizens in New Hampshire. This agreement includes
funding for $69,609, increasing the total funding amount from $158,831 to $228,440, and
extending the completion date from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017, effective July 1,
2016 or date of Governor and Council approval whichever is later.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services’
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sigeerely,

Denis Gouiet

DG/mh
Contract #2015-058B

cc: DolT

Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire’s Tomorrow



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator Contract

This second Amendment to the Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator
contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #2”) dated May 17, 2016, is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to
as the "State" or "Department”) and Granite United Way (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor”), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 22 Concord Street, Floor 2,
Manchester, NH, 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 17, 2014 (item #11) (hereinafter referred to as the "Contract"), and amended by
an agreement (Amendment #1 to the Contract) approved on June 24, 2015 (ltem #67), the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in
the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement (section 18 of the General Provisions of the
Form P-37), and Exhibit C-1 Paragraph 4, the Department reserves the right to extend the
completion date of the contract for up to two years to be exercised by mutual agreements by the
parties, upon availability of funding, acceptable performance of the Statement of Work, the
Agreement may be modified or amended only by written instrument executed by the parties
thereto and approved by the Governor and Executive Council;

WHEREAS, the Department and the Contractor agree to extend the program by one
year and increase the price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions in this
Amendment #2, the obligations of the parties shall remain in full force and effect in
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract as referenced above.

2. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.7 Completion Date, by extending the
date to June 30, 2017.

3. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.8 Price Limitation, to read: $228,440.

4. Amend Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment paragraph 5 by
striking:

5. Reimbursement for expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line
item budget shown in Exhibit B-1 and B-2. Allowable costs and expenses shall
be determined by the Department in accordance with applicable state and federal
laws and regulations.

Granite United Way
Amendment #2 Contractor Initials:
Page 1 of 4 Date:_5_a6 -



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator

and inserting in its place:

5. Reimbursement for expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved
budgets shown in Exhibit B-1, Exhibit B-2, and Exhibit B-3. Allowable costs and
expenses shall be determined by the Department in accordance with applicable
state and federal laws and regulations.

5. Add Exhibit B-3.

Granite United Way
Amendment #2 Contractor Initials:

Page 2 of 4 Date: —



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

LAl 1LY Pl [N

Date Marilee Nihan, MBA
Deputy Commissioner

Granite United Way

S/ 2/,/ //M/&

Date MAME P#7r2/c le Twrrs
TITLE ner/'aénf‘

Acknowiedgemeijt: . .
State of| {County of on l, ” , before the
undersigned officer, pdrsonally appeared the person ideptified abovef or satisfactorily proven to

be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

fhan T U

> aré)‘l’itle of Notary or Justice of the Peace

EAGHAN T. EMMONS, Notary Public
My Commisston Expires December 20, 2018

Granite United Way
Amendment #2 Contractor Initials:
Page 3 of 4 Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

21y M,
Date [ I N.am'e: %mﬁm u
Title: ¢ Nw\

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Granite United Way
Amendment #2 Contractor Initials:

Page 4 of 4 Date:_ 5 -6 &



Exhibit B-3

BUDGET FORM
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD
Bidder Name: Granite United Way
Budget Request for: Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator
Name of Program
Budget Period: 7/1/16 throuh 6/30/17
1. Total Salary/Wages $ 47,476 | $ 4748 $ 52,224
2. Employee Benefits $ 9,495 | $ 950 | $ 10,445
3. Consultants $ -
4. Equipment: $ -
Rental $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ -
5. Supplies: 3 -
Educational $ -
Lab $ -
Pharmacy $ -
Medical $ -
Office $ 800 | $ 80| $ 880
6. Travel $ 1,200 1 $ 120] $ 1,320
7. Occupancy $ -
8. Current Expenses $ -
Telephone $ 660 | $ 66| $ 726
Postage $ -
Subscriptions $ -
Audit and Legal $ -
Insurance $ -
Board Expenses $ -
9. Software $ -
10. Marketing/Communications $ -
11. Staff Education and Training 3 3,650 | $ 365] § 4,015
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ -
13. Other (specific detaits mandatory): $ -
$ R
$ N
$ R
TOTAL $ 63,281 $ 6,328 $ 69,609
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

Contractor Initials:__/ /

Page 1of 1 Date:



SState of Neto Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Granite United Way is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed March
30, 1927. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is concerned,

having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 23 day of May A.D. 2016

ey Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

l, Dean Christon

, do hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Officer of Granite United Way

(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on __May 25,2016
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the __ President and CEO

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the _26t day of __ May ,20_16
(Date Contract Signed)
4. Patrick Tufts is the duly elected _President and CEO

(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF Moo N b ra
County of NGO s w-&«\

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this A T“\ day of \\\cbw\ 200,

By De o XL C_/\I\J\SW\
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL}

Commission Expires: __ COLETTE L. PROVENCHER

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

QML? JJ

(Notary Public/

July 1, 2005



Colette Provencher
L. e

From: William Sherry <William.Sherry@graniteuw.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2016 12:14 PM
To: Kathy Scanlon; Alexander J. Walker Jr. (awalker@cmc-nh.org); Anna Thomas; Bill Bedor

(billbedor@hotmail.com); Cass Walker; Charla Stevens (charla.stevens@mclane.com);
Christian Zimmermann; Cindy Read; Dean Christon; Ehret, Gordon; Evan Smith
(Evan.Smith@Hypertherm.com); Gary Shirk (garymshirk@comcast.net); Heather Lavoie;
Heidi Nadeau; James Scammon (JimS@granitegroupbenefits.com); Jason Cole; Jeffery
Savage (savage@fsbnh.com); Jeremy Veilleux (jveilleux@bnncpa.com); John Mercier;
Joseph Purington; Julia Griffin; Mark Primeau; Marlene Hammond; Michael Delahanty;
Nannu Nobis (nnobis@nobiseng.com); Patrick Tufts; Robert Tourigny; Rodney Tenney
(rodtenney@comcast.net); Sean Owen (sean@wedu.com); Stephen Hackley
(stephen_hackley@cable.comcast.com); Steve Webb; Sue Ruka

Cc: Colette Provencher; 'Karen McLellan (karen.mclellan@hypertherm.com)’; 'Keith, Deb
(Pike)'; 'Kim Janelle (kjanelle@bnncpa.com)’; Kimberly Davis; Linda Cornwell; Linda
Moriarty; Lise McStravock; Lynda Gattermann; Roxanne Parkhurst; 'Sonja Sfameni
(sonja.sfameni@tdbanknorth.com)’; Cindy Read; Meredith Stidham; Kristin Martin; Cary
Gladstone; 'Welsh, Dorothy'; Susan Amburg

Subject: Board Vote needed to support 2-1-1 NH contract renewal

Importance: High

Dear Granite United Way Board members:

Since last week’s Board meeting, we have been approved by the State of New Hampshire for the renewal of our contract
for 2-1-1 NH to perform Refer 7 database services for Servicelink. 2-1-1 NH began to perform these services for the
State in 2014, and there is much synergy between this scope of work and our existing 2-1-1 NH database work. The State
requires proof via a Board resolution that Patrick Tufts, as President & CEO, can sign the documents required to
complete this transaction.

We have a reporting deadline of this Friday. For timeliness, we have decided to ask for your vote via email to pass this
resolution below. Please respond as quickly as possible simply with a YAY or NAY vote. Once a majority vote is reached,
Dean will sign the resolution and Susan Amburg will submit the resolution to the appropriate party.

Any questions, please contact me directly. Thank you for your quick attention to this matter.

Bill

Board Resolution

The Granite United Way Boarg of Directors proposed and approved by majority vote the following resolution
via an electronic vote on _4 /Z @ , 2016.

WHEREAS Patrick Tufts, Aesident and CEO, has the authority to enter into agreements on behalf of Granite
United Way and to sign documents executing such agreements;

THEREFORE it is resolved that:



Patrick Tufts is authorized to is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with
the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments,
revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

Chair, Grarite United Way Board of Directors

William T. Sherry | chief Operating Officer

Granite United Way | 22 Concord Street, Floor 2 | Manchester, NH 03101

With additional offices in Concord, West Lebanon, Littleton, Berlin, Laconia and Plymouth
603.625.6939, ext. 103 | www.graniteuw.org

Donate now to make a difference all year long.

Connect with Granite United Way



N
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 5/23/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER GONIACT sara Hartshorn

THE ROWLEY AGENCY INC. NG By, (603)224-2562 FA% oy (603)224-8012
139 Loudon Road AL <s: shartshorn@rowleyagency . com

P.0. Box 511 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Concord NH 03302-0511 msurer A:Hanover Ins Co

INSURED INSURER B :

Granite United Way INSURER C :

22 Concord Street INSURER D :

Floor 2 INSURERE :

Manchester NH 03101 INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:16-17 al lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL]SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE | WvD POLICY NUMBER {MM/DD/YYYY) | (AM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
— DAMAGE TO RENTED
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 100,000
A | CLAIMS-MADE ‘z OCCUR 1/1/2016 [1/1/2017 | \epexp (Any oneperson) | § 5,000
L PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $ 1,000,000
- GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 2,000,000
PRO-
POLICY JECOT LOC $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea accident) $ 1,000,000
A ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED 1/1/2016 [1/1/2017 ;
ALLOW e /1/ /1/ BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
X | NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
X | UMBRELLA LIAB X OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1 ’ 000 ’ 000
a EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 1,000,000
bED ] X ] RETENTION S a g 1/1/2016 [1/1/2017 s
A | WORKERS COMPENSATION [ X , WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? E N/A ) 1/1/2016 [1/1/2017
(Mandatory in NH) W E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEH $ 500,000
if yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
Covering operations of the Named Insured during the policy period.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
NH DHHS

Contracts & Procurement
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

C Holman, CPBCU, cIC/C ,%Jéa_, %é[;—a/\

t
ACORD 25 (2010/05) © 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. Allrights reserved.
INSN25/ 1901005 n1 Tha ACNRPD nama and laana ara ranictarad marke af ACNRN




LIVE UNITED

United
Way 4

Granite United Way

Granite United Way Mission

Granite United Way’s mission is to improve the quality of people’s lives by bringing together the
caring power of communities.

Granite United Way Vision

Granite United Way’s vision is to be the preferred way people work together to build a community that
values its collective responsibility to care for each other.



CRANITE UNITED WAY
FINANCIAL REPORT

MARCII3L, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Trrthe Board of EXrectons
Cranite Thited Wﬂ}’
Manchester, New T Tamnpshire 03101

We have auditnd the sccompanying slaternent of financial position of Granile United Way ag of March
31, 2015, and the telated ststernents of activilios and changes in net assets, functional repenses and cash
flows [or the year then ended, and the related notes {c the financial staternents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Tinaneial Statements

Management is responsible [or the preparation and fatr presentalion of ihese {inancial stalements in
accordance with accounting principles gencrally accepled in the Uniled Siales of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintersnce of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
mesentrtion of financial statements that ae free from material misstaterment, whether due to frand or
MTO.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Char rasponsibility s to express an opimion op these financial statemnents based un our andit,. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing, standards generslly sccephed i the United Ststes of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the andit & obtin ressonable assurance
about whether the financial staterments are free from material misslalement,

An andit involves performing procedires to obtain aundit evidence aboul the amounls and disclosures in
the financial slatements. The procedures selected depend on the audilor's jundgment, including the
assessment of the xisks of material misstatement of the financdal statenents, whether due to frand or
croar. T making those Tisk assesstnents, the auditor considers intesmnal control relevent to the entity s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design andit procedures that ave
approptiate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the &ffectivensss of
the entity’s inleraal control, Accordingly, we express ho such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting poficies used and the reasonablensss of significant acoounling
estimales made by managemert, ag well as evalualing the overall presentalion of Lhe finanrcial slalemenls,

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficicnt and appropriale (o provide a basis (or
our audit opinioa.

Opinion

In our opinfon, the finandal statements referred to above present fairly, m all material respects, the
financial position of Grunite United Way as of March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations, changes in
net assefs, functional txpenses, and cash flows for the year then tnded, in conformity with accounting
principles gencrally acceptad tn the United Stakes of America,
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Report on Summmarized Comparal ive Infarmaiion

We have previonsly audited the Granite United Way Mawch 31, 2014 financial stafoments, wnd we
expressed im unimodified sudit opivion on those andited financial statements i our report dated July 15,
2014. Tn vur opimiun, fhe sununariaa] compirative information presented berein as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2014 is consistemt, in all material rspects, with the strdited financial statements from
which it has boon derived.

Wﬂ%(m Alpedalan 5,\ (‘@"Hﬂwa/-

Concord, New Hampshire
July 14, 2015
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CRANITE UNITEDR WAY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FOSITION

March 31, 2015 with comparative totaly ay of March 31, 2014

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cush
Frupaid ard reimthursable expinses
Inveanumts

Accommt: and renl receivable
Civanls rereivable
Conteloaotions vecervatile, net of allowance for
wneodleclible rondetu i nns 2615 306,590 2014 5086,(44
Total o eesil nasels

OTHFER ASSETS
Pruperly and eguipmend. 12l
Investmwnts - endowment
Beachcied inberest in wssets helc by oihers

Volal nasals
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSELS

CURKENT T.TABILTTIES

ALLOCATLD ANNLAL CAMUIALGN SUPPCKT
LIESIGNATED HOR FUTURE FERLCH XS
Fuime allocations payatle
Doycr-designations pavatile

Cnvent maturibes of long-term debt

liurds bedd for nthers

f3ran:a payable

Aol payahble

Accried exoenses

Deierred revenue - designalion fees
Jodal curyend Nehititios

LONG-LERM DEBT, less cuurent mal o) kies

COMMITMEN'L'S (See Notes)

NET ASSETS (DEPICTT:
LinresLeicled
Unrestricted, mivested jn properly and «eipmenl
T ol psneatrivted sieLAnfion
Teemporarily restricted
Peenanently restricted
Totul net wosvfs fueieit

‘Tolai hiahilities and nef Assas

See Notes to Fhmpclal Statesienls.

2015 _ 2009

Tempeorarily Fermarently
Unrestriciod Reytricted Regtricled Total Taotal
¥ L2 U 1099C 5 FOL002210 > 984,508
20,867 - 220,967 87,645
173361 473,561 Q357
7,235 - - 7258 8,370
- - - - 11748
— B,014017 - 1L514,617 3,412,819
1,583,803 2004547 - Srugdle 3376940
1,452,541 - - 1,452,511 1,324,431
.36z 35306 108,397 145,8A1 139,580
- 1,737,703 1,737,703 1,7BE63
1.461,70% 1.774.008 00,397 Asyeang ADGFRA0
§ 055566 & 508555 §  10n397 §  H554518 % K743
L LIB8S8Se 3 - % - h 2288886 § 2753608
32,961 971038 - pRALA L1430, 8972
7,621,847 971,038 - 3,592,B6% 3,003,505
11,192 - 11148 13,733
(16,756 - - 4,750 32490
23,000 - - 22400 108,078
R011 - - 39 6,164
134,66% - B4 116,667
L 42,838 - - 42ZR3% 142,815
359106.21E 07136 36881252 4,374,460
20,447 - 2447 261431 _
{1,243,992) - - {1,295192) {1,564,516)
1,170,894 - - 1, 19K 804 1252268
(1413,098) . - CosieE) T (R17.298)
- ¢ L2707 - 4.427.517 4,321,831
- - 160,397 ian3gr 09,397
TH05.0960) +A27,517 UNBYT SEDE AIU78EC
® 20%566 3 530S $ 100907 6 SESASIS  § 874341
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GRANTITE TNITED WAY

STATEMLENT OF ACITVTTLES ANTY CHANGES IN NI ASSFLS

Year ended March 31, 2015 with vemparative Lotals for the year ended March 31, 2012

SupsporLand revenues
Cawmpagyn revenu::
Total conl:ibutions pledged
Less danor desigrations
Less provision for uncollectinle pledges

Add prior years” excess provision for uncoliectibls
pledges tikem dnlo income jn corrent vear

Ntk eompudger perneitoee
suppork
Sponsors and other eontributions
Grant revenue
In-kiné conlribulions
Lotal spport

Ofher tevenpea:
Adininistrative fees
EBoturnud praut
Rental ipcame
Miscellancaus enome
Todai stppert akd repenes

ol assets released iroon restriclions:
For salislaction of Lime restriclions
Fur sutsfaction of program restictioms

Expumses:
Program orvises
Supporl seevices:
Maragement and gencral
Fundraising

Tl egyaises

increase (decivess) i net ussels beforr othier aclinties

Oher aclivities:

Truresase I valoe of brandicial indereal o ousts, nel

of fees 2015 $11,082; 20014 S14,055

Realized and unrealized gains ou invesunends

Iypestiment incame
Tod] ety aclivites
WeE Dureese fcreeas T ted enseis
Netasses (deflely, beginning, of yrar

Nal aszls {aeiieit), end of \war

See Ninles to Tinancial Sigteymenls,

1R 2014
Tempaorarily Permanenily

Unrestricted Kestricted Keshirted Lotkal ‘Lotal
- % 202024 S ) 7020271 § (7,925,752

- (1,501,742} - (L,501,742) (1.551.774)
{3U7,265) {307,265) (296,346)

111,654 - - 111,654 200,450
111,8R4 5,211,714 - A A22 868 328,082
90 253,159 - 253,042 FIR,08R

- ZE3,694 - 213,604 227,207

31,169 - - 31,169 43,218
143,313 5,678,064 - 5821382 5,856,595
157,070 - - 152,040 140,730

- - - - 10,000

49,000t - ’ - 49,011 68,521
4,5% - - A3 5,278
353,988 3678060 - 1,032,057 f,0%1 k24
5,133,107 (3, 133.107) - - -
482,048 {45724M8) - - -
BUBY, 14 62,914 - 6,082,057 6,081,129
4,583,109 - - 4,387,105 4,831,105
73E108 - - 731108 877,275
356,605 - 356,105 649,428
h870,722 - - 387N, 720 f,AA7, 708
58,421 62914 - 161,355 {3705, 584)

- 33830 . 23,550 110,998

1o,864 25584 - 19,750 16,078
L6865 3,035 99,9[_1.3'_ _:j:Ub,US!'r
118,751 772 - V53503 271A
22152 TR2.686 - 314,858 {149.453)
Y17,248) 434 80 10397 4107980 4237433
(105,026) $ 4427517 5 100,397 5 4422518 $ 4,107,980
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GRANIIE UNTI'ED WAY

STATEMENT OF FUNCI'LONAL EXIENSES
Year Ended March 31, 2015 with cumparative totals for the year ended March 31, 2014

2015 a4
Ofher
program  Management

gervices and general  Fundraising "I'otal Total

Salaries and wages $  L09.067 5 450,808 & 319922 0 1869797 5 1,845,938
DPayroll taxes 77,0061 aT,608 224351 131,100 156,917
LEmployee fringe benedits 10 409 42 826 30392 177,627 t41,263
Eimployer 405(3) contribution 42,565 17,459 12,30C 72414 ¥1131

Toful sulurics eed revtied .

hr!.lte.jﬁinz 1,323,102 542,7M 3K5,135 2,2560, 9538 7,033,249

Comnunity Impact Grants ta Agencics 2,319,424 - - 2,31%4.424 2,9M)1117
Other program services Gee Note 12 198,177 - 198,177 101,378
Qcenpancy 143400 29,188 203,713 195,30 192426
211 exponses 120,768 - - 120,768 116,148
Telephone, commurications and lechnelogv k2,057 20,163 TG 86,526 RS, 4014
Graal expensis-Drug, Froe Grands 77,865 - - 77 865 3,425
Publications, printing and campaign expenses . - 71,212 71,212 #6,1(53
United Way Worldwide dues 38,710 13,877 11,268 63,855 66,249
omzless Sexvice Center expenses &L - - &7,000; "ALIKN)
Supplies and affice exprnse 28,771 11,8101 8,375 48,947 37,554
Protessional services - 47,399 - 47,309 41,445
Voluntesr Incorme 'I'ax Assistance oxpenoes UIL,BRD - - 4(1,88C 73870
Travel 22,461 9,162 6,502 38,125 43 589
Insurance 14,077 |71 8,728 33,476 32110
[n-kind expenses 18,321 7515 5,333 31,169 43,214
Specisl events 12,581 1,809 1,373 15,763 9744
Conferences, tragining wod meetings 8,309 3408 2,418 14,335 36,934
Miscellaneous 7411 304 2,154 12,6010 13,370
Postage 7163 2,938 2,083 12186 13,582
Communify necds assessmenl 13,500 - - 10,50 T1,834
I vestment tees G176 2,533 1,798 10,507 12162
Other dues and awards h,036 2,066 146¢ 8,568 19,109
Cemnmunity imprct expenses 4,183 - - 4,143 6,56

Totel evpasices tefore inlerest

N eiq;rr:r.‘mi{rm 4,525 0712 FO7 4372 539,673 3,773,517 6,365,283

Inberest cxpnse 6,772 2,778 1,971 11,521 1,905
Drepreciation 30,365 20,658 14,661 85684 90464

Totel freetiomed expenses § 4583109 § 731108 § 556,505 % 5870722 & 6467708

Ser Notes to Tinaricial Stafentents. age &



GRANSTT. UNTTED WAY

STATEMENTS OF CASII TLOWS
Years Fnded Mareh 31, 2005 and 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTTVITIES
Cash receivod from donors
Cash recetved irom granlors
Adminisirative feeg
Other cash received
Cash received from trust
Designations paid
Net cash received for fands held for others
Cash paid to agencics
Cash paid to suppliers, employees, and others
Net cush nzed in operiting nctieities

CASITFI.OWS TROM INVESTING ACITVITIES
Purchasce of property and equipment
Proceeds from salc of investments

FPurchase of investments
Nel cash prooided by Inoesiing activities

CASH FI.OWS USED TN FINANCING ACLIVITIES
Repayments of long-term debt

Netincrense (decrense) i cusi
Cash, beginning of year

Crsh, end of year

Ser Nofes fu Finioteind Statements.

2015 2014

$ 6,431,761 $ 7,309,625
225,434 215,464

57,002 131,393

54,720 75,429

71,733 63,389

(1,347,640) (1,532,385

34,260 2,396

(2,825,524) (3,474,950)
{3590,392) (3,346,709)
(488,551} (554,078)

(13,794) (168,929)

911,378 454,149

(3R01,813) (200,000

516,771 85,220

(10,518) {10,078)

17,702 (478,936)

984,507 1463444

5 1,002,210 % 984,508
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FTLOWS (CON'VINUED)
Years Ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
RECONCILIATION OT NET ASSETS (DETICTT) TO NET CASH
USED IN OPERATING ACILLVITIES
[ncrease (decrease) in net assels 5 34838 $ {149.453)
Adjustments to recomeiie inercase (decrease) in net asscts
Lo 1t cush wsed in operating activities:

Realized and unrealized gain on investmenis (19,750) (10,078)
Reinvested interest and dividends {(19,537) (29,217}
Depreciation 85,584 4(),46d
Prior years® excess provision for uncollectible pledges (111,634) (200,450}
(Increase) decraase in accoumts and ront reecivable L5 (8,370)
{Incrensc) decrease in prepaid and reimbursable cxpenses (133,324) 17,697
{Increase} decrease in conirfhulions receivable (90,144) 424 109
(nerease) deerense in gomts recoivable 11,743 (11,743}
Increase in vahre of beneficial interest in assets held by others (33,330 {110,998}
Decreass in allocaled annual campaign (310,620 {530,730}
Increase in funds held for others 34,260 2,346
Increase (decrease) in grants pavable (86,078) 83,078
Decreass in accounls payable (54,235) (2,681)
Increasce in agcrued oxpenses 22,998 1,235
Decrease in deferred revenue {99,977) (9,337)
Net casfr used On operating activities $ (488,551) % (554,078)

SUPTLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE O CASII IT.OW INFORMATION
Cash payments for:
Interest expense 5 171,521 & 11,0359

Sec Nofes bo Flrunclil Slateinedis. Pitge 7



GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= —_— —_— - e—_— —_—— == —_— [ B ——

Note 1. Nature of Activities

Granite United Way {the “United Way”) was fermed on July 1, 2010, as the result of a merger of four local
not-for-profit entitvies - Hetitage United Way, Inc, Cnited Way of Menimack Coumty, North Country Uniled
Way and Upper Valley Tniled Way. Al of these entities shaved the conunon goal to raise and distribute
{unds (o the commumity’s needs. This morger allows for shared resources end reduction in overhead in
arder {0 increase impact in the conunmunities the United Way serves,

On Tebruary 1, 2012, the United Way acquired the assets and assumed the liabilities of United Way of
Northern New JTampshire. On January 1, 2013, the United Way acquired the assets and assumed the
labilities of Lakes Region United Way.

The United Way conducts annual canpaigns in the fall of cach year to supporl hundreds of local prograims,
primarily in the subsequent vear, while the State Emplovee Charitable Campaign, managed by the United
Way, i conducted m May and June, Campeign contrifnrtions are used to support local health and himan
services programs, collaborations and to pay the United Way's operating expenses.  Donors may designate
their pledges tu support a region of the United Way, s Community bnpact area, other United Ways or to any
health and human service organization having 503{¢){3) tax—exectopt status.  Amounts pledged to other
Uniled Ways or apencies are included in the total conlributions pledged revenue and as designations
axpense. 'Lhe related amounts receivable and payable are reported as an assut and lability in the statemont of
inancial position. ‘The net campaign results are rellected as ernporarily restricked M the accompanying
statemnent of actvities and changes in net asseks, as the amowmig are o be collecled in the (ollowing year.
Frior year campaign resules are reflacted as net assets released from resurictions in Lhe currenl vear stalemenl
of activitics ind changes in net assets.

Nute 2, Summury of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting: The finaneial statemoents of the United Way have been prepared on Lhe accrual basis.
Under the acerual basis revenmes and gains are recognized when camned and losses are recognized when
incugred. The sigrificant accountng policics followed are described below to enhance the uscfulness of
the financial statements to the reader.

Fstiimates and assumptions: The United Way prepares its financial statements in accordance with generalky
accepted accoumting prnciples.  Munagement uses estmates and assumptions i preparing financial
stalements. Those estimales and assumplions uffect the reported amounts of asscte and labilities, the
disclosure of conlingent assets and liabitilies, and the reported revennce and expunscs, Accordingly, achoal
results could dilfer from those estmales.

Cash and cash equivalents: Tor purposes of reporting vash flows, the United Way considers all highty liquid

debt instrments purchased with a maturily of three months or Toss to he cash eguivalents, The United Way
had 110 rash equivalenls al March ¥, 2015 and 20714

{conlivued on uext wipz)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO TINANCEAT. STATEMIENL'S

Basiz of presentation: The United Way acconnts for confributions received in accordance with the FASB
Acecunting Standuards Codification topic for revemue recognition (FASB ASC 958-605) and contribulions
made i accordance with FASE ASC 958-720-25 and FASE ASC 958-310. In accordance with FASB ASC
958-005-25, contributions received arc recorded as unrestiicted, temnporarily restricked, o1 permanently
reslricted support, dt-‘.pending on the existence or nature of uny domor restrictions. To addition, FASE ASC
Y58-310 requires that unconditiopal promises to give (pledges) be recorded as reccivables and recognized
as revenues.

The United Way adheres to the Prasentation of Financial Statemenis for Nol-lor-Profit Organizalions topic of
the FASE Accounting Stancards Codificalion {[ASB ASC 958-205). Under FASE ASC 958-205, the United
Way is required to reporl information regarding its financial position and aclivities according o three classes
uf net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily resiricted net assets, and permanently resiricted net assels.
Descriptions of the tave met asset categories are as follows:

Unrestricted net agsets include both undesignated and designated net asscts, which arc Lhe revenues
nol restricted by ondside sowrces and revenues designated by the Board of Divectors for spedial
purpases and their related exponses,

Tentporarity restricted met assets include gifte and pledges for which time restrictiens or donor-
imposed reslriclions have nui yel been met and donur desigrativns payable assovialed wilh
uncollected pledpes. lemporarily restricted net assels also includs the henelicial interest in assels
held by olhers and the accumulated appreciation refated o parmanently restricled endowment
gifts, which is a requirement of FASE ASC 958-205-45.

Perinanently restricted st assets incTude pilts which require, by domor restricton, thar the warpus be
invested in perpetuily and only the incorne or a4 portiem therent be mada: available for program
operations in accordance with donor restrictions,

Contributions receivable: Campaipn pledge contributions are gemerally patd within one year. The Tnited
Way provides an allowance for uncoilectible pledpes at the Hine campasign results are recorded. Provisions
{or uncoliectible pledpes have been recorded in the amount of 5307,265 and $206.346 for the campaign years
ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respeciively. The provision for unoolleclible pledges was caleulated al 4.5%
of the total pledges for both years ended March 31, 2015 and 2(14.

Investmenis: LThe Uniled Way's investmenta in marketabie equity securilies and all debt securilies are
reporled al their fair value bascd upon quoled markel prices in e accompanying stalemenl of [inancial
position.  Unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in 1el assels in the accompanying
statement of activities. Ihe Urdted Way’s investments do not have a signiticant concentration of credil risk
within any mdustry, geographic location, or specific location.

Deferred revenue: The United Way charged a 10% adminisirative fee on the State Campaign designalions
for botk vears ended March 31, 2015 and 2014. The United Way charged 5% and 18% on most olher
designalions for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respeclively.

These administrative fees are recogrized in the post campaign years, as this s the year they are available o
otfset admintstrative cxponses, Phe admimistrative sees on the State Campaign ane accrued on an esiimated
basis, but are cinned om actial payments received.

(cofierued on next prge)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES 1'0 FINANCIAL STATEMENLS

Donated goods and services; Contributed services are recognized when the services received would
typically need to he purchased if they had not been provided by donalion or require sperialized skills and
are provided hy individuals possessing those skills. Various types of in-kind support, including services,
pift certificates, malerials and other ilerns, anmounting lo $31,16% and 543,218 have been reflected at fair
value in the {inancial statements for Lhe years ended March 31, 2015 ana 2014, respectively.

A substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amnounts of their fime in Thoited Way's
program services; however, lhe value of this contributed time is net reflected in the accommpanying
financial statements since the volurteers” time docs not mcet the criferia for recognition.

Functional allocalion of expenses: 'Lhe cost of providing the various programs snd othor activities luas boen
summarized on a funclional basis in the statement of activities and changes ™ net assets.  Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs sod supporting servives benefited.

Properly and cquipment: Properly and cquipment are included in wwestricked net assets and are cormiod at
cost if purchased and fair value if conbibuted. Maintenance, repairs and minor remewals ate expensed as
incurred, and renewals and betterments are capitalized.  The United Way capitalizes additions of property
and cquipmoent in excess of $1,000.,

Depredation of property and cquipment is coanputed using the slraight-lineg melhod over the (ollowing
useful Yves:

Years
Building and building Improvemants. ... s 3-31%
Leasehold IPrOVEIMEIIS et i s srsssrssssssessas s caiaeris 15
Frrmilure and CQUIPIEIE .c.crensieissinisie s s st e air 310

Concenirations of credit risk: Finandal mstruments which potenfially subject the Thnited Wiy o
concentrabions of credil risk consist primarily of contributions teceivable, substantially a1t of which are from
individuals, businesses, or not-for-profit organizations. Concentrations of credit risk ave imited due 1o the
large number of donors comprising the Urnited Wag's donor base, As a resull, al March 31, 2015, the United
Way docs not consider itself to have any significant concentrations of credit risk with respect lo coniributions
recetvable,

In addition, the United Way mainlains cash accounts with scveral financial institutions insured by the
Federal Deposii Insuxance Corporation up to $250,000. Amounts included in cash in excess of federaily
insured limils were approximatelv $238,726 at March 21, 2015.

Income taxes: The Uniled Way is exempl {from [ederal income taxes under Section 5U1(c)(3) of the Internal
Reverte Code. The Uniled Way s also excmpt {rom stale income taxes by virtue of its ongoing cxemption
(rom federal income laxes. Accordingly, no provision for Income taxes has been recorded o the
accompanving financial statements.

The United Way has adopted the provisions of TASE AC 740 Accounting for Uncertainty in Tncome Taxes,
Accordingly, management has cvalnaled the United Way's tax positions and concluded the Uniled Way had
maintained s ta-exempt status, does not have any significanl unrelaled business income and had laken no
uncertain tax pogitions that require adjustment or disclosure in the {inancial slalements.

(censtimpend o pext pagel
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTTES TO ITNANCEAT. STATEMIENTS

With few exceptions, the United Way is no longer subject lo Income tax examinations by the U.S. Federal or
State tax authorities [or tax years before 2012, Also included are (ilings for United Way of Northern New
1Tampshire und Lakes Regiom United Way prior to their acquisitions on February 1, 2012 and [anuary 1, 2013,
respectively,

Note 3. Fair Value Measurenents

The Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10)
establishes a fair value hiczaachy that prioritizes the imputs to veluation techniqucs used te measwc fair
value. The hicrarchy mives the highest priority to unagjusted guoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or habilities (T.evel 1 measurements) and the Jowest priority to measurements involving significant
unobservable mputs {Tavel 3 measurements).

‘The three levels of the (air valuc hierarchy are as follows:

e level 1 - inputs are unadfusted, guoted prices in active markets for identical assets al the
measurement date. Lhe types of assets carried at Level 1 fair value generally are securilies listed in
active markets. The United Way has valued their investments listed on national exchanges al the
last sales price as of the day of valuation.

o Tevel 2 - inputs are hased upm quotad prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted
prices for ideniical or similar instrumwnts in markets that are not active, and medol-hased valustion
techniques for which all sigmificant assumplions are observable in the markel or cam be
corroborated by observable market deta for substantiatly the full term of the assets or liabilities.

v Level 3 - mputs are gencrally wnobservable and typically retlecl management's cstimates of
assumptions thot market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, The fair values are
therefore determined  using  model-based  technigues that include option-pricing  moedels,
discounted cash ffow models, and similar techniques.

Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at March 31, 2015:

Level 1 Level 2 Level §
Money markel funds 3 57,146 & 7370 % -
Murtual funds;
Domestic rquity 91,342 - -
Ialernational equity 4,551 - -
Tixed income 256,427 - -
Other 5,147 - -
Fixed income funds 143,593 - -
Municipal boncds - 11,700 -
Corporalc bonds - 45,723 -
RBeneficial interest in assels held by olhers - - 1,787,703

Total

|er

.. 558206 & 64195 S L737703

{eomtiriued ot n2xt pose)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTT:S TOTINANCIATL STATEMEN'TS

Financial asscts carried at fair value on a vecurring basis consisl of the (ollowing, at Mavch 31, 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3
Money market funds $ 45378 % 22315 & -
Mutual funds:
Domestic equity 167,200
Intamational cquity 9,272 - -
Fixed income 256,015 - -
Other 48,584 - -
Fixed income funds 198,258 - -
Municipal bonds - 21,151 -
Corporate bonds ' “ 45,537 -
Beneficial interest in assels held by others - - 1,703,853
Tot! § 1024737 S 89013 § 1703853
Beneficial interest in
asscts held by olhers
Bedunce, April 1, 2013 $ 1,592,455
Total unrealized gains, net of fecs included in changes
temporarily resiricted endowment nel asscts 110,998
Batance, March 31, 20014 b 1,703,853
Tedal unrealived gains, not of fees inchuded in changes mm
temporarily restricted endowment net assets 33,830
Ealance, Mamli 31, 2015 8 1,737,703
Amount of unrealized gains, net of fees attribulable to change in unrealized
pains relaling to asseis still held al Lhe reporting date included in the
slatement of activilies and changes in net assets 9 33,850

All assets have been valued using a tnarket approach, except for the beneficial interest n assets held by
others, and have been consisienlly applied. The markel approach uses prices and other relevant
informalion generated by markel Lransactions involving identical or comparable assels. Prices may be
indicated by pricing puides, salcs transactions, markel Lrades, or other sources. The fair value of
yvestiments in money market funds is based upon the net asset values determined by the underlying
investments 1 which the funds invest,

The beneficisl interest in asscets held by others is valued using the income approach. The valuce is
determined by calevlating the present value of futwe distributions expected to be received, which
approximates the value of the trost's assots at March 31, 2005 and 2014,

GAAD requires disclosure of an estiroade of (air value for certain nancial instrumenis, The Tiiled Way's

sipnilicant financial instruments inchide cash and other shor-term assels and liabilites.  For (hese
[Inancial instrumenls, catryving values approximale [air value.

Page 12



GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TOTINANCIAT. STATEMTNTS

Note 4. Property and Cquipment

Property and equipment, at cost, at March 31, 2015 2014
Land, buildings and building improvemcnts $ 1817736 S 1,813,402
Leasehold improvements 3,061 5061
Furniture and equipment 347,370 a37,910

Votal property and eguipment 2,170,167 2,156,373
Less aecumulated deprociation {717.626) (631,942)
Tolal property and equipntent, net $ 1452541 § 1524431

The Urdled Way is cuerently in the proaess of selling ils birdlding in Laconia, New Hampshira, The building’s
carrying value arnounted to 5255,017 and $264,921 at March 31, 2005 and 2014, respeciively.

Nele 5. Endowent Funds Ileld by Others

Ageney endowed {unds: The Uniled Way is a beneliciary of various agency endowment funds at The New
Bampshire Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these foneds, property
conitibuted to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundalion is held as separate funds designated for the
benefil of the United Way. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation may make distibutions
from the funds to the United $ay. The distributions sre approdmatedy 4.03% of the snarket value of esch
fund per yessr, Tha estimnisted value of the future distribntions from the funds is jneluded in these financiil
statrmonts as roquired by FASB ASC 958 603, however, all praperty in the fund wus coniributad {0 The New
[ Tampshire Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the United Way.

The Uniled Way received $67400 and 361,909 [rom the agency endowed funds during the vears ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014, respeclively.

Designaied funds: The United Way is also a beneficiary of two designaled tunds at The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundalion. ’ursuanl Lo the lerms of the resolulion eslablishing Lhese funds, property conhibuted
io 'Ihe New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as a scparate fund designated for the benefit of the
Lunited Way. In accordance with its spending policy the Foundation makes distributions from the funds to
the United Way, The distbutions are approximately $02% of the market velue of the fund per gear These
funeds are not included in these finencial statements, sinee all property 0 these funds was contribuated &0 The
New !umpshive Charitable Foundatiue to be held and adonnislered for Lhe benefii of the LUnited Way.,

The United Way received $4,333 and $3,9580 from the designated fumds during the year emded March 31, 2015
ard 2014, respoctively, The market value of these fund's assets amounted to approximately F111,700 and
$109,500 as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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GRANTIEUNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Noie 6. Lonsterir Debt

Long-term debt at March 31, 2015 2014
4.25% mortpage [inanced with a local bank. The nole is due
in monlhly installments of principal and interest of
51,837 through December 2051. he note is collateralized

hy the Uniled Way's building locatrd in Plymauth, NH. 5 261,645 5 272,163
Less portion payable within one vesr 11,198 10,733
Tolal lung-term debt % 250,447 $ 261430

The schedirled misturitivs of Tong-term dobtat March 31, 2015 were as follows:

Year Ending March 31,

20716 S 11,198
2n7 11,683
2018 12,190
2019 12,718
2020 13,269
Thercafter 200,587

Total % 261,645

The mortgage note with Frankbin Savings Bank contains a financial covenant for debt service coverage, which
1% tosted annually based on the vear-und financial statements.

Note 7. Funds Held for Others

The United Way held funds (or others for the [ollowing profects:

March 31, 2015 2014
Concord MulHeultural Projeck Fund $ 33,038 % 18,721
SITAM Ahead 23,485 -
Get Moving Manchester 1,798 1,798
Mavaor's Prayer Break(ast 3,211 7,342
City of Concord Dog Park 3,506 3,606
Boetter Together 1,588 879

Toted $ 66,756 $ 32,496

Note 8. Endowwoment Funds and Net Assets

The United Way adheres to the Other Presentation Matters section of the Presentation of  Financial
Statements for Notfor-Profit Organizations topic of the TASEH Accommting Standards Codification (FASI ASC

958-205 45).
foonthimed e next poge)
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GRANITEUNITED WAY

NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FASB ASC 958-205-45 provides guidance on the nel asset classification of donor-resticted endowment [unds
lor a nonprofit organization Lhal is sulject to an enacted vevsion of the Uniform Pradent Management of
Inslilulional Funds Acl (UPMIFA).

FASB ASC U5H-205-45 also requires additional disclosures aboul an organization’s endowmenl fmds (both
donorrestricted  endowment funds and  board-designated endowmient fimda) whether or not the
organization is subject Lo UPMLEA.

The State of New Hampshire cnacted UPMIFA eflective July 1, 2008, Lhe provisions of which apply to
crclovwnuwent funds existing on or established aller that date. 'The United Way's endowment consists of three
mdividual fonds established for yeuth programs, Whole Village and general operaling suoposl. s
endowment includes both donor-restricted endowmen: funds and  funds designated by the Boaxd of
Directors to fumation as endowments. As requited by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment [unds,
including those funds dusigmated by the Bourd of Directars, are dassified and reported based on the exislence
or absence of donar-imposed restiicions,

The Board of Directors of Lhe Uniled Way has interproted UPMITA as allowing the Urited Way to
appropriale for expendilure or accurmuilate so much of an endowment fimd as the United Way detormines fo
be prudenl for Lhe uses, benelils, putposes and duration for which the endowment fund is established,
subjoct to the intent of the donor as expressed in the gift nsltrument.

As arcsult of this inferprotution, the United Way classifies as permanently resiricled nel assels (a) the original
value of gifts donated to the permanent endowmnent, (b) the original value of subseguent pifls ko the
permatent endowrnent, and (€) acoumulations to the penmanent endowment made n accordance with the
direction of the applicable domor gift mstrument at the me the accunulation 7s added to the fund. 'Lhe
rematning portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in prrmanently restricted net
assets 15 classified as ternporarily restricted net assets until those mmounts are appropniated for expenditure
5y (he United Way in a manner consistent with [he standard of prudeare prescribed by UPMITA.

In accordance with UIPMIF 4, the United Way considers the [ollowing faclors in making a determination to
appropriate oz accumnulate donor-restricted endowmenl funds: {1) the duration and preservation of the
various funels, (2) the purpeses of the donor-restricted endowment fimds, (3) peneral economic conditions,
{4 the pussible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total retum from income and (e
appreciation of imvestonents, (6) other resonrces of the United Way, and (7) the imvestimen! policies of Lhe
Unibed Way.

Towvesimeni. Refatn Objeciives, Risk Paramelers and Strategies: The Tnited Way has arlopted investnuwent
policies, apptoved by the Board of Directors, [or endowrment assets for the kng-tenrn, The United Way secks
to achieve an after-cosi lolal real rate of return, including imvestment income as well as capital appreciation,
which exceeds Lthe annual dislribulion wilh aceplable Tevel of risk. Tnvestment risk is measured in terms of
the [otal endowment find; invesimenl assels and allocalions bekween assei classes and siratepies are
managed Lo nol expose the lund to unacceptable level of risk.

Spending Policy: The Uniled Way does not cusrently have a spanding policy lor dislribulions each vear as

they strive to operate within a budget of theh cunent Campaign's income.

feenetinited o wext page}
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTE5 TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _

Tondowment net asset composition by type of fund as of March 31, 2015 is as follows:

Vemporarily Permancntly
Unreslricled Restiricled Reslricied Futal
Doncn-restricted endowment
funds $ - 5 30,0305 % 100,397 136,702
Poard-designated endowment
funds 9,162 - - 9,162
$ 9162 % 36,305 $ 100397 145,864 _
Changes in the endowmenl nel assels as of Macech 31, 2015 are as folluws:
Temporarily Pemancntly
Unrestricted Restricted Reslricted Tolal
Lindowmenl not assels,
March 31, 2014 b 8768 5 33,7084 % 100,367 134,340
hvestment relurn:
Investment meome 204 3038 - 0,242
Net appreciation
{realized and wircalized) 193 2,683 - 34176
Total investment returmnm 397 5,921 - 6,218
Tindowment net assels,
hMarch 31,2015 s 9162 & 36,305 4 00,397 145,864
Endowment nel asscl compaosition by Lype of fund as of March 31, 2014 is as lollows:
Temporarily  Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Tuotal
Tromor-restricted endowment:
funds 5 - % 30384 § 1043,397 130,781
Board-designated endowmeni
funds 8.765 - - R.765
5 8765 % 338t 5 1n0397 139,546

(ondined o nead page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES 'O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Changes in Lhe endowmeni nel assels as ol March 31, 2014 arc as {ollows:

Temporarily  Permanently
Unrestrieted Restricled Restricted Tntal
Endowment niet assets,
March 31, 2014 $ 8280 $ 23152 % 100,397 § 131,829
[nvestment return:
Investment incomne 224 3,343 - 3,567
Net appreciaiion
{realized and unrealized) 261 3,889 - 1,150
Tutal myvesfinent reiurm 485 7,232 - 777
Endowment nel assels,
March 31, 2015 3 8,765 % 30384 % 100397 & 139,546

Income from permanently restricted red assels ig available [or the following purposes:

March 31. 215 2014
General operations $ 14,930 % 14,9530
Youth programs 11,467 11,467
Cenaral operations of Whole Villape 74,600 74,000)

Total periuently vesivicted net assels $ 100,397 $ 100,397

Temporarily reatricled nel assets consisted ol support and olher unexpended revenues and represent Lhe

lollowtng:

Mareh 31, 2015 2014
Drug-Free Communities Suppurt Program $ 62,197 3§ 49,279
Conlributions receivable related to campaigns 3,514,617 4,312,819
Desiyations pavable to other agencies and United Ways (571,039 (847 348)
Velunteer incomee tax assistance program 33,630 33,802
Other programs 6,403 3571
Berlin area direrl services Yvitl| 18471
Agency endowed funds at the New Hampshive

Charitable Foundalion 1,737,703 1,703 453
Portion of perpetual endowiment funds subject to
time restriction under UPMILFA 36,305 30,384

Totud femporarily resiricied net assefs $

4,427,517 & 4,324,831

(confinuaT om naxt page)
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GRANTTE UNITED WAY

NOLES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AL March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Board of Directess has desipnated nel assels amounting o $394,087 and
554,539 respeclively, which are funds sel aside to meet the emerping opporlunity needs of the comnunity as
they arise.

Note 9. Pension Fund

The United Way sponsors a tax-delerred annuily plan qualified under Seclion 403(b) of the Inlrrnal Reverure
Code, whereby electing empleyees conlribute a portion of their salavies to the plan. Por the years ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014, the United Way contributed $72,415 and $71L131, respoctively to employees
participating in the plan.

Note 10, Fease Conmtitinents

T}uring the year ended Muarch 31, 2011, the United Way entered into an aperating, leass agrecment for nifice
space in Manchoster, Now TIampain The origgmal term of the Tease 15 for five yoars and has an option Lo
renew for two additional fAve-year terms. The terms of the lease reguire momthily payments of $2,373, The
rent wifl be increased by 2% snnually on each anniversary date of the lease. The Tease also requires the
United Way to pay its share of olher cosls such as taxes, maintenance and insurance amounling to $500 per
month. As of the end of Lhe lease lerm, May 31, 2015, the Uniled Way has not renewed for an additional term
and is cwerently leasing on a monlh-lo-manth basis.

Druring the year ended March 31, 2015, the United Way leased additions] office space in the samne budlding,
Thene was a partial rental amount of $435 dus for December, 2014 with monthiy payroents of $600 for the
remainder of the {iscal year. Monihly payments increase o 5875 beginrung in May, 2015, The Jease
agreemoent is an addenduny Lo the operating lease agreemont for the main office space,

Total renl expense relalad (o his lease amounled Lo 539,572 and 536,120 (or the vears ended March 31, 2015
and 2014, vespeclively.

The United Way loases a copy machine under the terms of an operating lease. The lease matured on October
1, 2014, The United Way bogan 4 new operating Lease for a copy machine on Octoboer 1, 2014 with a torm of
A0 maonths, The monthly leuse payment smount is $170. 1 he easc expense pmounicd o 52,036 and 52,279 for
the vears ended March 31, 2015 and 20714, 1*:sspent-ivdy,

The Urited Way's future minimum lease commiiments are as follows:

Year cnding March, 51

A¥l6 G751
217 20036
2018 2,036
219 1,018

Tomt? ) 14,541
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIATL STATEMENTS

Nofe 11, Conunilmenis

The United Way does not own the fand on whicl their building, in Taconia, New [ Tampshire is Iocated. The
Unated Way is part of a condominium assuociation to which they pay quarterly dues that fund certain
maintenance costs. For the years ended March 51, 20005 und 2014, the dues amountad 1o $3.259 and $3,060,
Tespectividy.

The United Way rents space in the building which they own and occupy to twelve non-affilialed, noreprofil
organizalicns, The monthly lease paymenis range from 5123 to 51,230 per month. For the years enced
March 31, 2005 and 2014, the rental income amounled to 546,285 and $57,654, respectively. The United Way
also provides space al no charge to one tenant In the Mymouth, New Hampshire building for atfordable
childcare services in support of ils mission o provide services, supporl and resomces to develop stiong
families, confident parents and healthy children.

Note 12, Other Program Sevvices

Other program services imcluded in the accompanying statement of funcHonal expenses include expenses [or
the following proyrams:

Ycar ending March 31, 2015 204
Women's Leadership Council 5 27,302 % 26,632
Financial Stability Program 44,287 14,970
Whole Village Famity Resvurce Center 35,394 771l
Service Learning Parincrship 35,000 -
Northorn NIT divect client services 11,182 8,827
Youlh Venlure Program 592 4,994
Bring Tt Program 26,421 23,366
Other program services 1,114 5,306
Carroll County United 15313 1,419
Curcarru Community Service Fund 69 1,451
Concord Plun tu Tind TTomelessness - 2,300
Lakes Region Fublic Access - 2,370

Tokd b 198,177 % 101,378

Note 13. Payment te Affilinted Ovganizations and Related Party

The United Way paid dues o United Way of Workdwide, The United Way's dues paid o this affiliaied
organization aggregated §65,8335 imd 506,24Q for the years ended arch 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The United Way is reiimbursed for services provided to United Wayvs of New Hampshire. The tolal amount
that was billed to United Wavs of New Hampshire for services amounled ko approximalely $213,696 and
$227,705 fur they years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respeclivaly.

{revitinaced o next ]
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GRANITE UNITHED WAY

NOITS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tncluded in prepaid and sepmbursable expenses s the accompanying stateraonts of financial position is
$103,631 and $16.932 at Manch 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, that is due 0 Uniled Way from United Ways
of New Hampshire.

In addilion, the Uniled Ways of New lTampshire operates the 211 program. The United Way paid dues
amounting to $120,768 and 5116,148 b the United Ways of New Hampghire for the 211 program for the
years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Note 14, Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made Lo Lhe March 31, 2014 financial statemenl oresentation o correspond
w0 the current year's format.  Net assets and changes in net asseks are unchanged duc to these
reclassifications,

Nofe 15, Subsequent Events

Dhuing April 2015, the United Way entered into a lease agreement with the option to puachasa on the
brailding m Taconia, Now T Tampshive as mentioned in Note 4. The term of the Jease begins on April 1, 2418
and expires on October 31, 2016, The tanent has the option ta purchase at any tme during the leas:.
Maonthly Jease payments are 51,600,

The Uniled Way has evaluaied subsequent evenis Lhrough July 14, 2015, the date which the fingneial
slalemenis were available Lo be issued, and have not evaluated subsequent events after thal date. “There were
10 other subsequent cvents that would require disclosure in financial staternents (or the year ended March
31, 2015,
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QN THE SUPPLEMENTAKY INFORMATION

‘T'o the Board of Direclors
Cizanile Uniled Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Our andit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial stalements taken as a
whole. The supplementary schedules of communily impacl awards lo qualified parlner apencies and
emerging opportunity grants by region is presented for purposes of addidonal analysis and s not a
requited part of the basic finandal staterments, Such information is the respansibility of management
and was derived from and relates divectly 1o the underlying accounting and olher records used to
prepare financial staiernents. The information has been subjected to the suditing procedures appiied in
the audit of fhe (fhancial statements and cerfain additiomal procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information direclly [o the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial staternents themselves, and other additional procediires in accordance with auditing standards
generally acceptod in the United States of America, In our opinion, the informalion is fairly slated jn all
material respects inrelation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
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Concord, New Hampshire

July 14, 2015
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GRANIUF UNITED WAY

SUPPLLMENTARY SCIIFDULE OF COMMUNITY IMTACT AWARDS TO QUALITIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPOKTUNITY GRANTS

MERRIMACK COUNTY REGION
Year Tnded March 31, 2015

Blueberry Express Day Care
Bovs and Girls Clubs of Greater Concord
Child & Family Services:
Mental Health/Subslance Abuse
Family Counzeling
Commumity Action Program:
CAP-Meals on Wheels
Community Bridges:
Early Supports & Services
Concord Cealition Lo End Homelessness
Comeord Family YMCA:
Child Development Center
Summer Carnp Program
Copper Camon Camp
Crisis Center of Central NH
Merrimack Valley Day Care
NIT T.agal Assistianee

Communify

Emipaci

. Awards
32,000
25,000

12,000
13,000

19353

21,247
25,000

20,000
25,000

4,000
14,000
80,000
47,500
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GRANIJTE UNTTED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULL OF COMMUNITY IMPACY AWARIDS TO QUALTFIED

PARTNER AGENCITS AND TMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

MERKIMACK COUNTY REGION (CONTINUED)
Year Ended March 31, 2015

NH Pro Bone Referral System
Penacook Communily Center:

Child, Youlh and Familics
Piltsfield Youth Workshop
Riverbend Conmmumity Mental T{ealih - Bmergency Services
Second Stant:

Adull Fducation

Alternative TTigh Srhoeol

First Start
‘Ihe Friends Program:

Foster Grandparents
Tiny Twisters Childcaze Center
While Birch Community Center

Snuth Congrepalion Church - Coid Weather Cvernight Shelter

Bridges Out of Poverty Workshop

Commumily
Impact
Awards

$ 15,000

40,000
25,000
50,006

27 500
3,000
16467

15,000
20,060
17 .50

5 607,567

Emesging
Opportunity
Granls

$ 2,000
R

5 8,764
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GRANTTE UNITED? WAY

SUITLEMENTARY SCIIEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTINER AGENCIES AN EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

NORTH COUNTRY REGION
Year Ended March 31, 2015

Boys and Girls Club of the North Country - After Schoet Program
Child and Family Services - Parenting Plus
Copper Cannon Camp
Graflon County Senior Citizens:

Aging Scrvices

RSVT Bane Builders

Servicelink
NH Legal Assistanice
Norlhern Human Services
Tri-County Cornmunity Activn Program
White Mowntaing Community College

Communiky
Impacl
Awards

D 10,000
3,000
2,000

10,000
5,000
1,500
3,000
3,205
4,000
1,600

o 43,303
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCIIEDULE OF COMMUNITY TMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING CPPORTUNITY GRANTS

UPPER VALLEY REGION

Year Ended March 31, 2015

Community
Impact
Awards
Alice Peck Day Memerial Hospital . & 18,000
Child & Family Services of NIT:
Fanily Counseling 15,000
Yrovention & fnlervenlion 14,925
Safe Vistlalion Program 25,000
Child Care Centter in Norwich 7,200
{Child Care Resource 3,57
Community Action Program - Relknap-Menimack Counfies - WIC 2,500
Copper Canron Camp 1,000
Cover Hore Repair 27,000
Disrnas of Vermont 18,000
{(Girls Inc. of NH 7,000
Global Campuses Foundatiom 8,000
Good Neighbor TTealth/Red Fogan Dental Chinic - Free Moedical and Denfal Care 22,000
Grafton County Scnior Cilizens Courteil:
Chorea Corps 2,400
Helpimg &0 Stretch Older Adualts' Tneomes 13,500
ServiceLink 2,50
Green Mountain Children's Cenler 1R,500
Headrest 15,000
1Y f HCV Resource Center 6,508
More Than Wheels 12,000
NII Legal Assistance 3,000
INH Pro Bono 3.000
Prevenl Child Abuse Yermont 4,000
Safcline, e, 8,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPILEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNIELY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
FPARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OFPORTUNITY GRANTS

UPPER VALLEY REGION (CONTINUFD)

Yeaxr Ended March 31, 2015

Communify
Iimpaet
Awards
Second Wind Foundation:

Cominunily Tducalion & Advocacy f 10,000

Twmning Paint Recovery Conter 13,400

Willew Grove 18,010
Sperial Needs Support Center nf the Upper Valley:

Educatiomal Advocacy 6,000
Springfield Family Center - Lunch at Home 13,200
Southeastern Vermenit Commumnity Action:

Fuel and Housing Assislance 20,000

Financial Filhess 8,000
The Tamily Place - Child Advocacy Cender 3,000
The Childyen's Center of the Upper Valley 156,000
The Mayhew Propram 4,000
Upper Valley TTaven:

Comumunity Services Program 10,000

Sheller Services Peagram 200000
Valley Court Diversion Program:

Conrt Diversion Program 18,000
Visiling, Nurse: Associalion and Hospice of VI & NH - Malernal and Child Health 8,000
Willing [Tauds - Feeding ITungry Neighbors 4,999
Windham and Windsor Housing Irust:

Tinametal Capabilities 8,000

Suppart and Services af Home 7,000
WISE:

Crisis Intervention & Supporl Services 18,000

Emergency Sheltes & [Tousing 6,000

Prevenlion & Communily Education 6,000

$ 482,999

Emerging

Opportunity

Grants

Ottauguechee ITealth Foundation $ 1,000
Windham and Windsor Housing Trust 5,000
Headrest Crisis Holline f2,50{)
Springficld Warming Shelter 3,000
Child and Family Scrvices - Supervised Visitation and Exchange Frogram 2500
$ 18,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCITEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMTACT AWARDS TO QUALITIND

PARINER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS
SOUTIIERN REGION
Year Tinded Mavch 31, 2015

City Year New Hampshire - Whole School Whole Child
Lasler Seals Now 1 Tampshive, [uc.:
Child Development & Family Resource Center
Manchesler Neighborhood Health lmprovement Stralegry:
Building Adult Capacitics Collaborative
Childhood Resiliency and Care Coordination
Manchester Commmnity TTealth Center:
Behaviural Health Integration Program
NH Legal Assistance - Civil Legal Aid for Low-Income and Elderly
Paistow Comrunily YMCCA
Seenity Place ~ Crists Services & Transiional Living Program
‘The Granite YMCA:
YMCA Start

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester - Bedford Counseling Assoc,

The Upper Room, A Family Resournce Cenler:

Adolescenl Wellness Program (AWT)
The Way Tlome-Stops to Suceess in Safe, Affordable T Tousing
YWCA New Hampshire - Crisis Service

Community
Impact
Awards

45,000
501,080

210,000
270,060

335,000
40,000
20,000
50,000

20,000
335,000

20,000
45,000
40,000

$ 880,000
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CRANYIT UNILED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULLE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QGUALIFTED
TARTNTR AGENCITS ANT TMERGING OI'TORTUNITY GRANTS

MNOERTHERN REGION
Year Fnded March 31, 2015

Community Financtal Fitness

Conway Village Congregalional Church:

Conway Dinner Bell
Food Tantry

Copper Carmon Camp

Harvesl Chrislian Fallowship:
Community Café
Feeding Tlope Food Pantry

Helping Hands North, Inc.

NTT Legal Assistance

Northern Tloman Soervices

The Family Resource Center (Gorham}

While Mouniain Comnumumity College:
Azsisting People in Transition
Child Development Center

Community
Impact
Awards

$ 517

2.250)
2,250
1000

1000
3,000
3,000
2,000
4,000
1,500

1,000
1,000

$ 22517
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUFTLEMIENTARY SCITEDULTE OT COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALITITD
PARTNER AGENCIES AN EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

{CENTRATL REGION

Year Ended March 31, 2015

Commuinily

Impaci

Awards

Appalachian Mourntain Teen Project $ 10,000
Belknap County Beonemic Development Connl 25,000
Boys and Cirls Club of the Lakes Region 20,000
Fumily Resource Center (Wrap Around) 35,000
Health Fivst Family Clinic 42,500
Taconia Area Tand Trusl 35,000
Lakes Reginn Child Carve 60,000
Salvation Army 25,000
b 252,500

Emerging

Opportunify

Grants

Leadership Lakes Region b 758
Bridees Oul of Poverty Workshop 2,594
f 3,744
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Granite United Way

LIVE UNITED

United
Way /

2016 Board of Directors

William D. Bedor, CPA (Bill)

Bedor Management & Investments, Inc.
Secretary

North Country Campaign Chair & Community
Impact Chair

Dean J. Christon

Executive Director

New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority
Chairman of the Board

Jason Cole
Attorney
Devine Millimet & Branch PA

Michael Delahanty
Superintendent of Schools
Salem School District

Gordon Ehret

Operations Leader

Hypertherm, Inc.

Upper Valley Community Impact Chair

Julia Griffin
Town Manager
Town of Hanover

Stephen Hackley (Steve)
Senior Vice President
Greater Boston Region
Comcast

Marlene Hammond
Underwriting Account Executive
Lincoln Financial Group

Kevin Kober

Senior VP & Senior Mortgage
Lending Officer

Ledyard National Bank

Heather Lavoie
President
Geneia

John Mercier
Executive Vice President/Senior Lender
Primary Holdings, LLC

Heidi Nadeau

Executive Vice President

Chief Financial Officer

H.L. Turner Group, Inc.

Merrimack County Community Impact Chair

Nannu Nobis
CEO

Nobis Engineering
1** Vice Chair

Sean Owen

President & CEO
wedl

GUW Marketing Chair
2" Vice Chair

Mark Primeau

President

Bank of New Hampshire
Immediate Past Chair

Joseph Purington
Vice President, NH Electric Field Operations
Eversource Energy



Sue Ruka, RN, PhD
Director of Population Health
Memorial Hospital

Jeffery Savage (Jeff)
President & CEO
Franklin Savings Bank

James Scammon (Jim)
Executive Vice President
Granite Group Benefits, LLC

Bill Sherry
Chief Operating Officer
Granite United Way

Gary Shirk

VP/Director of Operations
Bovie Screen Printing
Resource Development Chair

Evan Smith
President
Hypertherm, Inc

Charla Stevens
Attorney
McLane, Middleton Law Firm

Rodney Tenney (Rod)
Merrimack County Office
Local Community Impact Chair

Anna Thomas

Deputy Public Health Director
Manchester Health Department
Southern Region CIC Chair

Robert Tourigny
Executive Director
NeighborWorks Southern NH

Patrick Tufts
President & CEO
Granite United Way

Jeremy Veilleux
Principal

Baker | Newman | Noyes
Treasurer

Alexander J. Walker, Jr. (Alex)
Catholic Medical Center

Cass (Catherine) Walker
LRGHealthcare
Central Region Community Impact Chair

Steven C. Webb (Steve)

Market President — New Hampshire
TD Bank

Governance Chair

Rick Wyman
President
Meredith Village Savings Bank

Christian Zimmermann
President
Pike Industries



Cary Gladstone

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE
Information & Referral

Currently supervise staff of 6, including call center operations and resource database staff at
211-NH, statewide Information and Referral service

provide training to social service providers and community with strong referral component
to statewide and national financial resources

Maintain relationships with public health, after school, family strengthening and asset
building programs and their leadership throughout NH & VT

Conducted training for 211-NH staff on VITA program

Started information and referral program at Family Resource Center

Community Tax Preparation/Asset Buildin

Currently supervise 7 VITA (Volunteer Income Tax Assistance) sites in 6-county area of
NH & VT, managing staff and overseeing volunteer recruitment and training

Lead community-based statewide asset building program, including chairing the CASH
(Creating Assets, Savings & Hope) Coalition of the Lakes Region, part of the Financial
Stability Partnership, and CA§H Coalition of NH

Co-organized statewide NH Asset Summits in 2013 & 2015

Coordinated Franklin and Manchester, NH VITA sites, resulting in 742% increase in
families served.

Coordinated matched savings program for first time home ownership, college funding, small
business and vehicle purchase.

Developed information and referral services for Family Resource Center.

Organized “It’s Your Money” Show to provide 200 adults and youth access to financial
resources.

Workforce Development/Training

Coordinated economic development project in conjunction with local community and
business leaders for the purpose of business retention and expansion.

Developed alternative work experience placements as patt of statewide welfare-to-work.
Initiated pilot program on job-seeking for people with arthritis.

Assisted in bringing satellite office of NH Employment Security to Franklin, NH.

Work with Diverse and Underserved Populations

Co-organizer of diversity conference with attendance from 7 states.

Served on Multicultural Festival organizing committee.

Organized workshops for people with disabilities and their families.

Presented workshops for people of low-to-moderate socioeconomic standing.

Cary Gladstone, p. 2



Employment
2012-Date Granite United Way

2005-2012 Casey Family Services
2000-2004 NH Community Loan Fund

Previously: INH Job Training Council
Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association
Arthritis Foundation
American Heart Association
River Valley Community College
WIKE, Newport, VI /WTSV, Claremont, NH

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University, Master of Science, Community Economic Development
University System of New Hampshire, Bachelor’s Degree, Management

Grahm Jr. College, Associate in Applied Science, Communications

CIVIC

CATCH Neighborhood Housing (Board of Directors member, Board secretary), Concord Task
Force Against Racism and Intolerance (member), Choose Franklin (past Advisory Board member),
Trailwrights (member), Community Players of Concord (past Board member)



NTCHOT AN Do JOSEEN r

OBJECTIVES
To obtain a position that will benefit from my knowledge, skills and abilities in this industry and to

maximize my work activities and context to achieve a positive outcome.

EDUCATION
American Institute of Technology
03/28/2008 Diploma
Alliance of Information and referral specialist (AIRS) Certified
NH Dept of Safety and home land security Web ECO Certified

> Professional Driver Safety Training Certification
+ Call Center Protocol and Customer Service Certification
* Manager training and staff management Certification
' Own and operate 2 small business

Experience
Granite United Way New Hampshire 211
22 Concord St Manchester NH 03102 1-866-444-4211

Information and referral specialist July 2012- Current
Provide information and referral to callers in need of social service issues using the 211 database. Assist callers with

needs such as finding homeless shelters, fuel assistance, housing, food and clothing in their area searched by zip
code. Make correct referrals based on the evaluation of the caller’s needs. Record all calls in 211 database. Assist in
ctisis situations by contacting the proper authorities and coaching individuals through the situation, also providing

referrals for the situation.



Nicholas D. Joslin

Belknap-Metrimack County Community Action Program
82 Elkins St. Franklin NH 03235 603-934-3444
Fuel Assistance intake worker August 26 2013- Dec 9 2013
Assist chients with intake of the fuel and electric assistance programs (FAP and EAP). Educate
clients on the programs regulations and qualifications as well as refet to other programs and
resources in their community as necessaty. Process applications for review by the certifier’s follow
up with clients in accordance with the time restraints set upon by the program guidelines. Preform
intake for clients through an interactive interview to determine the clients understanding and

eligibility for assistance.

United Way Mass 211 Program ¢ 46 Park St., Suite 2, ['ramingham, MA 01702
Information and Referral Specialist 09/2009 —7/2014

Provide information and referral to callers in need of social service issues using the 211 database. Assist callers
with needs such as finding homeless shelters, fuel assistance, housing, food and clothing in their area searched by
zip code. Make correct referrals based on the evaluation of the caller’s needs. Record all calls in 211 database. Assist
in crisis situations by contacting the proper authorities and coaching individuals through the situation, also

providing referrals for the situation.

Homefolk Transportation ¢ 930 Laconia Rd., Belmont, NH 03220
Dispatcher/Manager [ Dtiver10/2011 — 11/2012

Use local or regional geographical knowledge of transportation to communicate technical information. Coordinate
equipment ot petsonncl in mechanical repair setting and expedite freight movement. Fxplain traffic or transportation
situations concisely as well as direct human or vehicle traffic. Maintain records, reports, and files in an organized
manner according to USDOT laws and regulations. Make critical decisions to ensure the safe and timely movement of
the drivers and the equipment being operated. Manage inventories and supplies as well as make critical financial
decisions day to day dealing with repairs and maintenance. Preform data entry using a custom program. Assist with
billing each week as directed, as well as safety functions. Maintain communications daily directly with customers to

ensure customer satisfaction.

Werner Enterprise ¢ 14507 Frontier Rd., Omaha, NE 68138
Professional Driver 03/2008 — 03/2009

Pick-up and deliver freight from one location to another using semi-tractor and semi-trailer, following all USDOT
laws and regulations. Fill out all paper work required by the company and the customer such as bill of ladings and
cargo claims paperwork. Maintain USDOT required logs. Plan trips accordingly, while keeping in touch with

dispatcher.
2




Nicholas D. Joslin

Sitel/ Client Logic ¢ 620 N Grant St., Odessa, TX 79762
Life insurance Agent 03/2005 — 06/2007

Assist USAA Life Insurance members with payments, as well as set up future payments and policy upgrades. Provide
members with policy info as requested. Log all calls in company database and process policy change information via
paperwork. Assist members in starting claims.

Cingular Wireless ¢ Midland, TX 79703
Financial Setvice Representative 03/2003 — 03/2005

Assist callers with financial services including payments, promise to pay and reactivation. Negotiate payment
arrangements and resolve any outstanding balances. Log all conversations and account activity in database. Promote
sales by up selling and providing information.

Oneravel.com ¢ 501 N. Grant St., Odessa, TX 79762
Ticket Processor 01/2002 —03/2003

Process commercial airline tickets in timely and accurate manner. Manage company website, assist customers with any

concerns with airline ticketing issues. Identify fraudulent submissions and kick out bad bookings.

SKILLS

» Proficient in Microsoft Programs such as:
Word
Excel
PowerPoint
Outlook
* Excellent management and organizational skills.
» Great time management skills.
» Great customer service skills and background.
» Ability to understand and execute verbal and written instructions quickly and proficiently.
* Very good self-starter
* Own, operate and manage small business in Gilford, NH.
: Can safely operate a Class A combination vehicle 26,001 and over.
* Good attention to detail.




PAULA R. NINIVAGGI

SUMMARY and ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Developer and editor of the monthly electronic Disability Information and Resource Newsletter; distributed to thousands of
people statewide, regionally, and nationally.

Receives accolades on helpfulness of newsletter and resources from: educators, families, Hispanic Network, National
Institute of Health, National Alliance on Mental liness-New Hampshire, Parent Information Center, Service Link, Veterans,
people with disabilities and more.

Extensive knowledge of community, state, and national disability, benefits, employment, health, independent living, mental
health, and other programs and services.

Strong analytical, communication, creative thinking, customer service, decision making, marketing, organization, and problem
solving skills.

Extensive skills and experience with; Excel, Word, databases, email applications, the internet, social media, and

website content, development, and maintenance.

Able to work independently and collaboratively in a team-based environment.

Graduate, Leadership New Hampshire, Class of 2009.

Collaborator with the New Hampshire Chapter of the National Alliance on Mental lliness’s (NAMINH) on creation of

SIDE by SIDE for Independent Living; now a national model program.

Improved the Disability Seminar series by: increasing the number of speakers, attendees, quality of, and satisfaction

with the seminars.

Volunteer work: Foster Adoptive Parents Resource Guide, Cultural Diversity Task Force, and more.

EXPERIENCE

PROGRAM LIAISON - New Hampshire Statewide Independent Living Council (SILC), Concord, NH, 2006 - present

Developer and editor of the monthly Disability Information and Resource Newsletter; distributed to thousands of people
statewide, regionally, and nationally.

Successfully developed model communication dissemination outreach plan.

Presented, exhibited, and developed Resource Guide on Disaster Preparedness.

Created and disseminated resource guides on: Back to School, Healthy Living, Mental Health, and Transition.

Developing online resource guide with the NH Council Developmenta! Disabilities.

Increased the number of collaborators with the SILC, including culturally diverse agencies and communities.

Maintaining ongoing database of: children, community, disability, education, employment, grants, mental health, veterans,
federal and state programs, and other resources.

Develops and disseminates quickly information related to disasters and emergencies.

Ensuring compliance and contractual requirements in accordance with federal and state rules and regulations.

Preparing reports on various items related to the SILC.

Responding to questions and requests for information from: people with disabilities, agencies serving people with disabilities,
praviders, families, and the general public.

Researching, reviewing, and reporting on legislation and policies affecting persons with disabilities.

Providing data and statistical analysis.

OLMSTEAD COORDINATOR - Division of Behavioral Health, State of New Hampshire, 2002 - 2006

Established and maintained positive working relationship with bureau staff, contractors, consumers, mental health agencies,
providers, and the general public.

Participated in New Hampshire Olmstead and Mental Health planning initiatives.

Participated in various training and technical assistance forums including ones on: workforce retention, policy framework,
housing, financing community based long-term care, and budgetary dynamics.



e (Gave presentations to the New Hampshire Older Adult Mental Health Planning and Advisory Council.

¢ Coordinated annual New Hampshire Adult Mental Health Planning and Advisory Council retreat.

e Actively participated in accomplishing the mandates of the New Hampshire Mental Health Planning and Advisory Council to
review the state’s comprehensive mental health plan, monitor and evaluate the statewide system of mental health services,
and advocate for consumers of mental health services and their families.

¢ Member of the Real Choices Council, New Hampshire Adult Mental Health Planning and Advisory Council, and the Nursing
Home Transition Workgroup.

¢ Developing training sessions for mental health consumers and families on disability rights.

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE - Oxford Health Plans, Hooksett, NH, 1997 — 2002
e Answered over 90 requests for information daily utilizing time management, communication, and problem solving
skills.
Troubleshoot claim problems and benefit issues.
Interpreted and educated peers, patients, and health care providers on medical and payment policies.
Provided complete and accurate details on medical and regulatory policies and benefits.
Proactive promotion of benefits and services to patients and providers.
Conducted in-services and trained new employees.
Received awards for achieving 100 percent in quality of information, accuracy of information, and communication
skills. Awards for top performance. Accolades from peers, patients and providers on professionalism and problem
solving abilities.

MEDICAL RECORDS MANAGER - Manchester Community Health Center, Manchester, NH, 1994 — 1997
¢ Responsible for maintaining over 6,000 records.

Establish clinical document flow system.

Improved efficiency of office.

Selected as a facilitator for the Total Quality Management process.

Co-chaired Medical Records Committee.

DRG SPECIALIST - Lowell General Hospital, Lowell, MA, January - September 1994
e (Captured data to ensure accuracy and optimal reimbursement using automated systems.
e Accurately coded and abstracted medical records utilizing highly specialized nomenclatures.
¢ Properly sequenced diagnoses and procedures for optimum reimbursement.

CASE MANAGER - Brookside Hospital, Nashua, NH, 1988 — 1992
¢ Reduced insurance denials with an appeal success rate of 80%.
Improved documentation and regulatory/Medicare compliance through monitoring and staff education.
Prepared for surveys with resulting minimal deficiencies through automated data collection.
Provided technical assistance.
Served as liaison between staff and insurance companies.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science, Degree in Business - Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Associates Degree, Health Information - Tidewater Community College, Virginia Beach, VA

References provided upon request.



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Elderly & Aduit Services

Agency Name: Granite United Way

Name of Program/Service: Refer 7 Database System Administrator

0.00%
William Sherry, Chief Operating Officer 0.00%
Cindy Read, Chief Financial Officer 0.00%

Patrick Tufts, President

Jennifer Higgins Pitre, Director of Philanthropy 0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (Executive Director, CEO, CFO, etc.).
These personnel MUST be listed, even if no salary is paid from the contract. Provide their name,
title, annual salary and percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

BUREAU OF ELDERLY & ADULT SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9203 1-800-351-1888
Diape Langley Fax: 603-271-4643 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director
June 1, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Depaitment of Health & Human Services (DHHS), Division of Community Based
Care Services, Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services, to exercise a renewal option to an existing
agreement with Granite United Way (Vendor 160015-B001), 22 Concord Street Floor 2, Manchester,
NH, 03101, for the continuation of system support Administration for the Refer 7 database that is
used by the Department and its contractors to provide Information and Referral services to citizens in
New Hampshire, by increasing the price limitation by $69,611 from $89,220 to an amount not to
exceed $158,831, and extending the completion date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2016, effective
July 1, 2015 or date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. 42% Federal and 58%
General Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in State
Fiscal Years 2016, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified, without approval from Governor
and Executive Council.

05-95-48-481010-78720000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, ADM ON AGING GRANTS

Rctivity L\
SFY Class/Object Class Title Number mount
2015 570-500928 Family Care Giver 48130316 $15,197
2016 570-500928 Family Care Giver 48130316 $21,001
Total $36,198

] +




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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05-95-48-481010-89250000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, MEDICAID SERVICES

GRANTS
Activity I
SFY Class/Object Class Title Number mount
2015 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130461 $9,804
2016 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130461 $4,000
Total $13,804

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK

GRANT
Pctivity
SFY Class/Object Class Title Number mount
Information & Referral
2015 545-500387 Contracts 48130205 $10,295
Information & Referral
2016 545-500387 Contracts 48130205 $10,295
Total $20,590

05-95-48-481010-95650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, SERVICELINK

~ Activity Lm
SFY Class/Object Class Title Number ount
2015 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130291 $24,020
2016 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130291 $24,020
Total $48,040

05-95-48-481510-61800000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, MEDICAL SERVICES, LTC ASSESSMENT &

COUNSELING .
hctivity
SFY Class/Object Class Title umber mount
Assessment and
2015 550-500398 Counseling 48130280 $10,295
Assessment and
2016 550-500398 Counseling 48130280 $10,295
Total $10,500




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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05-95-49-49050000-29850000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: DIV OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, COMMUNITY BASED CARE
SERVICES, BALANCE INCENTIVE PROGRAM BIP

Activity
SFY Class/Object Class Title Number mount
2015 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 49053316 $19,609
Total $19,609
EXPLANATION

Approval of this Amendment will allow the Department to continue to provide for the
continuation of system support Administration for the Refer 7 database that is used by the
Department and its contractors to provide Information and Referral services to citizens in New
Hampshire.

The Contractor will ensure that the information in the database is updated and maintained in
accordance with the National Alliance for Information and Referral Standards, and ensure information
reflects the full range of Medicaid long term services and supports so that citizens of New Hampshire
have accurate and reliable information. The Contractor will train additional Department staff and other
contractors in the skills needed to utilize the Refer 7 database to better serve their clients as well as
enhance and expand Refer 7 database business operating standards.

The Department and the New Hampshire Servicelink Contractors use the Refer 7 database
as a tool to provide Information, Referral and Options Counseling services to citizens in New
Hampshire in accordance with the Alliance for Information and Referral Services (AIRS). The AIRS
Resource Database standards require that the Information and Referral (J&R) service providers
develop, maintain, use and disseminate an accurate, up-to-date resource database that contains
information about available community resources including details about the services they provide
and the conditions under which services are available.

This Contractor was selected through a competitive bid process.

The original Agreement and Governor and Council letter contains an option to renew the
contract for up to two additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
performance of services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council. The Department and
the Contractor have agreed to extend the contract for one additional year.

Should Governor and Executive Council decide not to authorize this request, New Hampshire
citizens who directly benefit and utilize the Refer 7 resources may not be able to access accurate,
consistent, comprehensive and unbiased information on the full range of long term services and
supports targeted to all populations and income levels. Additionally, it is likely the Department’s
development of the No Wrong Door approach to serving its customers and training additional
Department staff and other contractors in the skills needed to utilize the Refer 7 database to better
serve their clients will be delayed.

The Contractor's compliance with the contract requirements will be monitored by the
Department through reporting and a work pian.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds:
42% federal funds from:
¢ Medicaid, CFDA #93.778, FAIN #NH20144;
o Administration for Children & Families, Social Services Block Grant; CFDA #93.667,
FAIN # G1301NHSOSR;




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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o Administration for Community Living, Family Caregiver Support Titie Il E, CFDA
#93.052, FAIN #14AANHT3FC,;

» Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services, State Health Insurance Assistance Program;
CFDA #33.324, FAIN #90SA0030100;

o Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services, Balancing Incentive Program, CFDA
#93.778, FAIN #051205NHBIPP.
58% general funds

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,
% Diane Langley
Director

Approved by: @
icholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 -
www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet
Commissioner

June 5, 2015

Nicholas A. Toumpas, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

Dear Commissioner Toumpas:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (Dol T)
has approved your agency’s request to enter into an amendment with Granite United Way, 22 Concord
Street, Floor 2, Manchester, NH 03101, for the continuation of system support administration for the
Refer 7 database as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2015-058A.

The purpose of this agreement is to enable the Granite United Way to continue to service
the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care
Services, Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services with system support administration for
the Refer 7 database that is used by the Department and its contractors to provide
information and referral services to citizens in New Hampshire. This agreement includes
funding for $69,611, increasing the total funding amount from $89,220 to $158,831, and
extending the completion date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2016, effective July 1,
2015 or date of Governor and Council approval whichever is later.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services’
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,
Denis Goulet

DG/mh
Contract #2015-058

cc: Leslie Mason, DolT



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator Contract

This first Amendment to the Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator contract
(hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #17) dated April 30, 2015, is by and between the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department”) and Granite United Way (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a
nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 22 Concord Street, Floor 2, Manchester, NH,
03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 17, 2014 (item #11) (hereinafter referred to as the "Contract”), the Contractor
agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement (section 18 of the General Provisions of the
Form P-37), and Exhibit C-1 Paragraph 4, the Department reserves the right to extend the
completion date of the contract for up to two years to be exercised by mutual agreements by the
parties, upon availability of funding, acceptable performance of the Statement of Work, the
Agreement may be modified or amended only by written instrument executed by the parties
thereto and approved by the Governor and Executive Council;

WHEREAS, the Department and the Contractor agree to extend the program by one
year and increase the price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions in this
Amendment #1, the obligations of the parties shall remain in full force and effect in
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract as referenced above.

2. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.7 Completion Date, by extending the
date to June 30, 2016.

3. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.8 Price Limitation, to read: $158,831.

4. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
to read: Eric Borrin, Director of Contracts and Procurement.

5. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number to
read: (603) 271-9558.

6. Delete in its entirety paragraph 13 of Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

Granite United Way ,.’_'))/
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:_*
Page 1 of 4 Date: £ j



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator

7. Amend Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment paragraph 5 by
striking:

5. Reimbursement for expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line
item budget shown in Exhibit B-1. Allowable costs and expenses shall be
determined by the Department in accordance with applicable state and federal
laws and regulations.

and inserting in its place:

5. Reimbursement for expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved
budgets shown in Exhibit B-1 and Exhibit B-2. Aliowable costs and expenses
shall be determined by the Department in accordance with applicable state and
federal laws and regulations.

8. Add Exhibit B-2.

9. Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit G, Certification Regarding the Americans with
Disabilities Act Compliance, and replace with Exhibit G, Certification of Compliance with
Requirements Pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based
Organizations and Whistleblower Protections.

Granite United Way \
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:;
Page 2 of 4 Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refer 7 Database Systsm Support Administrator

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

bl AMasd Whan

Date Diane Langley
Director

o[

Dafe - z IUFTS
TITLE ,7NS,6 »
Acknowledgement: /
State of _ “'iA , County of_G-zo.f4un on_¢ ahs , before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above. ~_ ,wettreey,,

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the PSge&AH 4%,
« '-'\.'\"‘;‘SS./OA/ ”5’(/‘:,

5’ {b.tp 2
—_ : - r"’ﬁ ?"‘cn":% 2
‘6\ (‘rq\q "\\)bskw\ t\k)\w_/\ : :, O .:
Nﬁne and Title of Notary or Justice of’the%}i £, tie §
%, . -.,,293?..- ‘.-‘
V.J “;1/'1—— l" /'L//P SH\Re‘\‘\‘

U

Granite United Way
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:_}
Page 3 of 4 Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

ale Y| )\/\m(
e | f\%v

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was app va<§ y tha Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Granite United Way .
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials;_ @)
Page 4 of 4 Date:



Exhibit B-2

BUDGET FORM

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder Name: Granite Unlted Way

Budget Request for: Refer 7 Detabase System Support Administrator
Name of Program

Budget Period: 7/1/15 to 6/30/16
‘:s“v‘-wr:’r-'r SRR T, “J‘"‘f“: h ‘ v"!'*"" ISP

1. Total Salary/Wages

2. Employee Benefits

3. Consulants [ -
4. Equipment:

p
Rent_gl b
Repair and Maintenance b
Purchase/Depreciation ]
5. Supplies: 3
Educational ]

Lab 3 -
p
p
p
3

Pharmacy
Medical
Office
6. Travel
7. Occupancy
8. Current Expenses -
Telephone $ 660} $ 66 726
Postage _
Subscriptions
Audit and Legal
Insurance .
Board Expenses
9. Software
10. Marketing/Communications
11, Staff Education and Training $ 650 $ 65
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):

800
1,200

80
120

wnlen
enlen
AN

PPy
'

PP INRP PP

wnlenlenlenle

TOTAL 63,252 | 3 6320 § 60,611 |
Indlrect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

Exhibit B-2 Contractors Initials: F{
Page 1 of 1 Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1980 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and iocal
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discnmination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistieblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
Contractor Initials
Cortification of Compliance with requi pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Ti of Falth-Based Orgenizations
and Whistieblower protsctions

a27/14 )
Rev. 10/21/14 Page 1 of 2 Date L'»D“S



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Dat Name? Pz i s

' T F
Title:  Prosicfent

Exhibit G \
Contractor Initials

Certification of C. with requi pertaining to Federal Nondiscri ton, Equal Ti of Faith-Based Organizations .
and Whistieblower protections . 7~
e27/14 “S
Date

Rev. 1021114 Page 2 of 2




State of ﬂefn Hampshire
Bepartment of Btate

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Granite United Way is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed March
30, 1927. 1further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is concemned,

having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 9" day of April, A.D. 2015

Ty okl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

|, K. Mark Primeau , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency: cannot be contract signatory)

1. | am a duly elected Officer of Granite United Way
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly heid on May 28, 2015
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President and CEO
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the__2"  dayof June , 2015
(Date Contract Signed)
4. Patrick Tufts is the duly elected President and CEQ
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatsrv)

of the Agency. /4

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Signature

County of /“Je /K Y,

/LC-C —r
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this v? day of S 7€, 2045,

. SBHTT
8y /1 [Thork b eNedialm,

(Name of Elected Q\ﬁg’ 0% the

o XL )
R S MY * %
P coumsggN %2 .
503 PIA : = - ‘
i ‘.‘NOE\)/‘.14,2017 § (Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)
—':‘0 ‘o%’ \C)o' s
af, . \’.t \\
o0, o N
L AR
"I/, N

HAMP' 2.
Tt

Commission Expires: _/// /7 ‘;{ 20,7

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Diane Langley

Director

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

BUREAU OF ELDERLY & ADULT SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9203

1-800-351-1888

Fax: 603-271-4643 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

August 14, 2014

REQUESTED ACTION

1T

RAZ 4’
435 Geae

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care
Services, Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services to enter into an Agreement with Granite United Way
(Vendor #160015-B001), 22 Concord Street Floor 2, Manchester, NH 03101 for the provision of
system support Administration for the Refer 7 database that is used by the Department and its
contractors to provide Information and Referral services to citizens in New Hampshire, in an amount
not to exceed $89,220, effective September 3, 2014 or date of Governor and Council approval,

whichever is later through June 30, 2015.

Funds to support this request in State Fiscal Year 2015 are available in the following accounts.
The contract provides the Department the authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation without
further approval from the Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-48-481010-78720000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS,ADM ON AGING GRANTS

. . Activity
SFY Class/Object Class Title Number Amount
2015 570-500928 Family Care Giver 48130316 $15,197
Sub Total $15,197

05-95-48-481010-89250000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, MEDICAID SERVICES

GRANTS
. . Activity
SFY Class/Object Class Title Number Amount
2015 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130461 $9,804
Sub Total $9,804

3

%



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

August 14, 2014
Page 2 of 4

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK

GRANT
SFY Class/Object Class Title Activity | s ount
Number
Information & Referral
2015 545-500387 ation & R 48130205 | $10,295
Sub Total | $10,295

05-95-48-481010-95650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TOLOCALS, SERVICELINK

. . Activity
SFY Class/Object Class Titie Number Amount
2015 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130291 $24,020
Sub Total $24,020

05-95-48-481510-61800000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, MEDICAL SERVICES, LTC ASSESSMENT &

COUNSELING
. . Activity
SFY Class/Object Class Title Number Amount
Assessment and
2015 550-500398 Counseling 48130280 $10,295
Sub Total $10,295

05-95-49-490510-29850000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS, HHS: DIV OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, COMMUNITY BASED CARE
SERVICES, BALANCE INCENTIVE PROGRAM BIP
. . Activity
SFY Class/Object Class Title Number Amount
2015 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 49053316 $19,609
Sub Total $19,609
Grand Total $89,220




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

August 14, 2014

Page 3 of 4

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this agreement is to provide the Department with System Support
Administration for the Refer 7 database used by the Department and its contractors to provide
Information and Referral services for long term care supports and services to citizens in New
Hampshire. The services of a System Support Administrator will ensure that the information in the
database is updated and maintained in accordance with the National Alliance for Information and
Referral Standards, and ensure information reflects the full range of Medicaid long term services and
supports so that citizens of New Hampshire have accurate and reliable information. As the Department
develops the No Wrong Door approach to serving its customers, the System Support Administrator will
train additional Department staff and other contractors in the skills needed to utilize the Refer 7
database to better serve their clients as well as enhance and expand Refer 7 database business
operating standards.

The Refer 7 Database is a searchable web-based resource that is available to the citizens of
New Hampshire that provides information about the names of agencies who provide long term services
and supports in the community, the specific types of services they offer and the conditions under which
those services are typically available. Additionally, the Department and its contractors use the Refer 7
database to document calls/contacts, demographics options counseling activity, contact and client
follow up activities, case notes, and person centered action plans. Refer 7 also documents
performance tracking, quality performance monitoring, as well as the ability to track client records and
to generate reports.

This contract was competitively bid. On July 16, 2014, the Department issued a Request for
Applications to solicit vendors to provide Refer 7 database System Support Administration. The
Request for Applications was available on the Department of Health and Human Services’ website
from July 16, 2014 through July 31, 2014. There were 3 applications submitted. (See attached
Summary of Applications).

The applications were evaluated by a team of Department of Health and Human Services
employees with knowledge of the program requirements for the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services
and with knowledge of the Refer 7 database system and the deliverables identified in the Request for
Applications. The team also included staff with significant business and management expertise. The
team selected Granite United Way.

The attached contract calls for the provision of these services effective Governor and Executive
Council approval through June 30, 2015 and reserves the Department’s right to extend the agreement
for up to two (2) years, based upon mutual agreement by the parties and the satisfactory delivery of
services, continued availability of supporting funds, and Governor and Executive Council approval.

Should Governor and Executive Council decide not to authorize this request, New Hampshire
citizens who directly benefit and utilize the Refer 7 resources may not be able to access accurate,
consistent, comprehensive and unbiased information on the full range of long term services and
supports targeted to all populations and income levels. Additionally, it is likely the Department's
development of the No Wrong Door approach to serving its customers and training additional
Department staff and other contractors in the skills needed to utilize the Refer 7 database to better
serve their clients will be delayed.

The Contractor's compliance with the contract requirements will be monitored by the
Department through reporting and a work plan.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

August 14, 2014
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Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds:
57% federal funds from:
o Medicaid, CFDA #93.778, FAIN #NH20144;

o Administration for Children & Families, Social Services Block Grant; CFDA #93.667,

FAIN # G1301NHSOSR,;

e Administration for Community Living, Family Caregiver Support Title Il E, CFDA

#93.052, FAIN #14AANHT3FC;

¢ Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services, State Health Insurance Assistance Program;

CFDA #93.324, FAIN #90SA0030100;

o Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services, Balancing Incentive Program, CFDA

#93.778, FAIN #051205NHBIPP.
43% general funds

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be

requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Diane Langley”
Director \\

S A
Approved by: .

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



SUMMARY OF APPLICATIONS
Request for Applications (RFA) # 15-DHHS-DCBCS-BEAS-RFA-07
Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator

Applicant Select Non Select
Granite United Way X
Manchester, NH
Rebecca May X
The Villages, FL
Tina M. Ricketts X
Manchester, NH
Review Committee
Name Title

Wendi Aultman Program Specialist IV

Kelley Capuchino Medicaid Policy Analyst

Brenda Marcoux Business Systems Analyst




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.nh.gov/doit

Steven J. Kelleher
Acting Commissioner

August 25,2014

Nicholas Toumpas, Commissioner

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

Dear Commissioner Toumpas:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology
(DolIT) has approved your agency’s request to enter into a contract with Granite United Way of
Manchester, NH as described below and referenced as DolIT No. 2015-058.

The purpose of this contract is to provide system support of the Refer 7 database
used by the Department’s elderly and adult programs to provide information and
referral services to citizens of New Hampshire. The funding amount is $89,220,
and the contract term commences upon Govermnor and Executive Council approval
and extends through June 30, 2015.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services’
submission to the Governor and Executive Council.

. JTHA

Steven J. Kelleher

SJK/Itm
RFP 2015-058

cc: Wendi Aultman, DHHS
Leslie Mason, DolT



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2  State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Stree
Concord NH 03301
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
22 Concord Street, Floor 2
Granite United Way Manchester NH 03101
1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7  Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number See Exhibit B
603-625-6939 June 30,2015 $89,220.
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Wendi Aultman 603-271-9068
1.11 Contractor Slgnature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
%—' Patrick M. Tufts, President and CEO
ey 1 A el

1.13 Acknowledgement Slatc of ¥} , County of W){ﬂ/u

On _8_\_\&“_‘[ before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

112

1131 Slgnalure of Notary Public gr Justice of the Pgace

|
: [Seal]

"1.13.2 Name and Title of N&ta

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.14  State Agency S%nat

Y e

MPSANN

\t» ﬁ) fh‘l,w\‘\\\ Diane Langley, Director
N AL M

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Depaf{ment o&dministration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
Director, On:

117 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

o Mok fipe o ey iqaey

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (*Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services perforimed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without hmitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreeiment immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete recimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RS A 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

Page 2 of 4

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide ail
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws. )

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agrecment. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agrcement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: \

Date: ¢ %@‘5\



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computcr programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In thc event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11, CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall requirc any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of Ncw Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshirc.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No faiture by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

2]1. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22, SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A

1.

Scope of Services

Purpose: The Contractor shall provide System Support Administration for the Refer 7
Database.
Definitions:

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

2.6.

Alliance for Information and Referral (AIRS): A consortium of National Information and
Referral agencies developed standards to provide information and referral to
individuals.

The Balancing Incentive Program (BIP) is a discretionary grant awarded to the
Department by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). It is intended to
assist the State to rebalance the disparity between the amount of Medicaid funding for
institutional long term services and supports and home and community based ones by
encouraging the development of home and community based infrastructure changes
such as the No Wrong Door access model, conflict-free case management and
standardized assessments.

Long Term Services and Supports (LTSS): These are home and community-based
services provided to individuals support their level of independence in the home and
community

No Wrong Door (NWD): The NWD approach operationally involves a wide array of
agencies and organizations in the Options Counseling Program so it can effectively
reach and serve a broad range of populations. These population groups include older
aduits, people with physical disabilities of all ages, people with intellectual and
developmental disabilities, and individuals interested in planning and/or paying for their
LTSS needs.

Refer7 Database:

2.5.1. The database is owned by the Department.

2.5.2. ltis a searchable web-based resource that is available to the citizens of New
Hampshire that provides information about the names of agencies who provide
long term services and supports in the community, the specific types of services
they offer and the conditions under which those services are typically available.

2.5.3. The database is used by the Department and its contractors to document
calls/contacts, demographics options counseling activity, contact and client follow
up activities, case notes, and person centered action plans. Refer 7 also
documents performance tracking, quality performance monitoring, as well as the
ability to track client records and to generate reports.

Users:

2.6.1. Users are citizens (the public) who access the Refer 7 Database described in
section 2.5.2.

2.6.2. Users are the Department's staff, the Department'’s contractors and other parties
or agencies identified by the Department that use the Refer 7 database as
defined in Section 2.5.3 above.

2.6.3. The Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator Contractor shall be
considered a User to carry out the purposes of this Agreement.

3. The System Support Administration services are as follows, but not limited to:

3.1.

Assess and identify areas of improvement in using the Refer 7 database such as but
not limited to the business operating standards, the skill level of the Users (defined in
Section 2.6.2) as in Section 3.5, in using the Refer 7 database, and the Departments
monitoring process to ensure AIRS standards are met.
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3.1.1. Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of the contract, the applicant shall
provide the recommendations for improvement to the Department.
3.1.2. Upon review and approval of the improvements by the Department, the applicant
shall complete a workplan as part of Section 1.13.8 outlining the tasks necessary
to make the improvements.
3.2. Provide technical assistance that supports all the Refer 7 database program functions
used by Users (defined in Section 2.6.1 and 2.6.2) statewide.
3.2.1. Be available to the Users for on-call telephone technical assistance for forty (40)
hours a week, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:30 am to 4:30
pm;
3.3. Revise the existing Refer7 database policies, training manuals, and tip sheets as
instructed by the Department;
3.3.1. Expand existing Refer7 policies by ensuring all populations and all payers are
identified and included according to Balancing Incentive Program (BIP)
requirements.
3.3.2. Ensure the full range of Community Long Term Services and Supports (LTSS)
options for all populations and all payers are integrated into the policy manuals
and tip sheets.
3.4. Ensure that the Citizens of New Hampshire have access to accurate and timely
information about the full range of LTSS based on their individual needs and
preferences and ability to pay found in the Refer 7 database. The Contractor will:
3.4.1. Update and Maintain on a continuing basis and according to the Alliance for .
Information and Referral standards (AIRS), current information in the Refer 7
database about services offered by human service agencies in New Hampshire
by:
3.4.1.1. Confirming accuracy and the completeness of information that currently
resides in the Refer 7 database;

3.4.1.2. Establishing contact with new agencies and obtaining detailed
information about their program;

3.4.1.3. Obtaining information on organizations that provide long term support
services;

3.4.1.4. Ensure the information available in Refer7 reflects the full range of
Medicaid LTSS options available in the state according to BIP
requirements;

3.4.1.5. Coordinating final database inclusion/exclusion decisions and informing
the service provider; and

3.4.1.6. Entering the information into the Refer 7 database.

3.5. Assess and identify skills needed by the Users (as defined in Section 2.6.2) to use the
Refer 7 Database.

3.5.1. Report to the Department the needs of the users;

3.5.2. Develop training sessions to train new users and needs for existing users

3.5.3. Develop a training schedule of dates and locations;

3.5.4. The training and the schedule shall be reviewed and approved by the
Department within 90 days of contract effective date;

3.5.5. Perform the training and provide training materials for all users of Refer7.

3.5.6. In partnership with the Department staff and contractors, develop training for
users including BIP Partners who will use the searchable database and Refer7
tools made available to them through BIP.

3.6. Convene a Refer 7 database user workgroup.
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3.6.1. Facilitate the workgroup to identify system and user problems and provide

recommended solutions to the Department.

3.6.2. User workgroup must include a member of the BIP Stakeholder Committee.

3.7. Create reports and mailing lists as requested by the Department.

3.8. Create a paper service directory with agency names, contact information and services.

3.9. Manage and assure proper user accessibility according to user roles and policies

3.10. Monitor the quality of the data entered into the system by the Users (as defined in
Section 2.6.2).

3.11. Identify and communicate to the Users (as defined in Section 2.6.2) the additions and
updates the Department makes to the Refer 7 database.

3.12. Reporting Requirements will be a component of the work plan.

3.13. The Contractor shall:

3.13.1. Complete training by the Department on the Refer 7 database in within thirty
(30) days of the effective date of the contract.

3.13.2. Comply with the AIRS standards;

3.13.3. Work forty (40) hours per week as directed by the Department;

3.13.4. Of the total hours worked during the contract period, the Contractor shall work
up to 390 hours on activities that support the No Wrong Door (NWD) Balancing
Incentive Program (BIP) efforts as outlined in this scope of work.

3.13.5. Sign and comply with the State of New Hampshire, Office of Information
Technology Computer Use Agreement and the Refer 7 System User
Confidentiality Agreement.

3.13.6. Complete and submit a record of all activities completed and time worked each
week to include identifying specific activities related to BIP deliverables and
tasks to the Department.

3.13.7. Provide the Department with a monthly report showing all agency, site, and
service profiles and fields added to or updated in the refer 7 database including
the date of the activity.

3.13.8. Provide the Department with a detailed project plan to complete the scope of
work, within 90 days of contract effective date. The work plan shall identify the
deliverables, how the deliverables will be completed, who will complete the
deliverables, and timelines for completion of the deliverables. The Contractor
shall use a work plan template as instructed by BEAS.
3.13.8.1.  During the course of this contract period it may be necessary to

revise or modify the deliverables and the work plan referred to
above to meet the primary objectives defined by the federal grantor.
BEAS will work with the Contractor to develop a revision that takes
into consideration resources and timelines for completion. The
above-mentioned work plan to be developed will be adjusted
accordingly, but in no case will timelines extend beyond the grant
award period and or contract period.

4. Staffing

The Contractor agrees to adhere to the following staffing requirements:

4.1. Provide sufficient staff to perform all tasks specified in this Agreement. The Contractor
shall maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out all of the functions,
requirements, roles, and duties in a timely fashion.

4.2. The Contractor shall verify and document that all staff and volunteers have appropriate
training, education, experience, certifications, and licenses, and orientation to fulfill the
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responsibilities of their respective positions. Staff providing the direct work shall
maintain AIRS certification and Certified Resource Specialist Certification.

4.3. The Contractor shall keep up-to-date personnel and training records and documentation
of all individuals requiring licenses and/or certifications. The Contractor shall develop a
Staffing Contingency Plan and shall submit its written Staffing Contingency Plan to
DHHS within thirty days of approval of the Contract Agreement. The plan shall include
but not be limited to:

4.3.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of key personnel or
other personnel during the period of this Agreement;

4.3.2. A description of how additional staff resources will be allocated to support this
Agreement in the event of inability to meet any performance standard;

4.3.3. A description of time frames necessary for obtaining staff replacements;

4.3.4. An explanation of the Contractor’s capabilities to provide, in a timely manner,
staff replacements/additions with comparable experience; and

4.3.5. The method of bringing staff replacements/additions up-to-date regarding this
Agreement.

5. E-Studio Electronic Information System
The Contractor shall be required to use BEAS’ E-Studio electronic information system. E-
Studio is BEAS' primary vehicle for uploading important information concerning time-
sensitive announcements, policy releases, administrative rule adoptions, and other critical
information. Contractor shall identify all of the key personnel who need to have E-Studio
accounts to ensure that information from BEAS can be shared with the necessary agency
staff. There is no cost to the contractor for BEAS to create an E-Studio account and no limit
on the number of staff an agency identifies to have access to E-Studio. Contractor shall
ensure that their E-Studio account(s) are kept current and that BEAS is notified when a staff
member is no longer working in the program so his/her account can be terminated.

6. Criminal Background and Adult Protective Service Registry Checks

6.1. Contractor shall conduct a New Hampshire criminal background check if a potential
applicant for employment or volunteer, funded under this contract, may have client
contact.

6.2. Contractors which are licensed, certified or funded by the DHHS shall meet the
requirements of RSA 161-F: 49, which requires the submission of the name of a
prospective employee who may have client contact, for review against the State Adult
Protective Service Registry.

7. Grievance and Appeals

The Contractor must maintain a system for tracking, resolving, and reporting complaints

regarding its services, processes, procedures, and staff. The Contractor shall have

grievance system in place that includes a grievance process and any grievances filed are to
be available to DHHS upon request. At a minimum the process shall include the following:

7.1. Name of person,

7.2. type of service,

7.3. date of written grievance,

7.4. nature/subject of the grievance,

7.5. who in the agency reconsiders agency decisions,

7.6. what are the issues that can be addressed in the grievance process, and how
consumers are informed of their right to appeal or file grievances.
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8. Privacy and Security of Information
DHHS is the designated owner of all data and shall approve ali access to that data. The
Contractor shall not have ownership of State data at any time. The Contractor shall be in
compliance with privacy policies established by governmental agencies or by state or
federal law. Privacy policy statements may be developed and amended from time to time by
the State and will be appropriately displayed on the State portal. The Contractor shall
provide sufficient security to protect the State and DHHS data in network, transit, storage
and cache. In the event of breach, the contractor shall notify the Department within one day
from the date of breach.

9. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care
The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they
will provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

10. Compliance with Laws and Regulations
Services and Administration of the program services shall be provided in accordance with
the applicable federal and state laws, rules, policies and regulations adopted by the
Department of Health and Human Services currently in effect, and as they may be adopted
or amended during the contract period.

11. Contract Monitoring
The Contractor shall:
11.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of contract compliance
requirements as identified in OMB Circular A-133.
11.2. Ensure the Department is provided with access that includes but is not limited to:
a) Data
b) Financial records
c) Scheduled access to Contractor work sites/locations/work spaces and associated
facilities.
d) Unannounced access to Contractor work sites/locations/work spaces and
associated facilities.
e) Scheduled phone access to Contractor principals and staff
f) Timely unscheduled phone response by Contractor principals and staff.

12. Financial Integrity Maintenance

12.1. Financial Reporting Requirements: In addition to the requirement for Contractor to
provide annual audited financial statements, the Contractor agrees to provide quarterly
to the State, within thirty (30) days from the last day of the quarter, interim Balance
Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements for the Contractor to including separate
statements for related parties. A quarter is defined as a period of: July 1 to
September 30, October 1 to December 31, January 1 to March 31, and April 1 to June
30. All statements must be certified by an officer of the reporting entity.

12.2. Corrective Action and or Termination: If after review of the contractor submitted
information, and based on the following risk assessment, the State at its sole
discretion, may:

1. Require a corrective action plan for identified deficiencies, or
2. Terminate the contract for reasons of risk to continued operation, services, or
deliverables as required by the terms of the contract.
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12.3. Absence of Risk Conditional Termination: This section does not negate any rights the
State may have relative to the contract.
12.4. Risk Assessment Process:

The State will analyze financial information provided by Contractor. Such analysis will
include calculation of the ratios set forth in Table A. The weighted average of the
ratios is used to calculate a risk score as follows:
Low Risk: 70% and Above

Moderate Risk: From 26% to 69%

High Risk: 25% and Below
12.5. Weighted Average: The process for the scoring is
1.Calculate the individual ratio for the Contractor
2.Divide Contractor ratio by the benchmark to determine percentage above or below
benchmark
3.Multiply Contractor percentage by “Percentage Weight of Risk Score”
4. Add the scores for the ratios as determined for each ratio in Steps 1 to 3.
12.6. The State will provide, upon request, the Risk calculations for the Contractor.

Table A - Risk Analysis Assessment Ratios Matrix

Percentag
e of Total
Risk
Name of How it is What the Ratio | Benchmar | Assessme
Category | Ratio Description Calculated Measures k nt
Liquidity | Current This ratio CURRENT This ratio measures | 1.0:1 10.0%
Ratio compares ASSETS/ the Liquidity of an
the Current | CURRENT organization. A
Assets with | LIABILITIES ratio equal to or
the Current higher than the
Liabilities. benchmark is
considered
favorable. The
benchmark is
expressed as a
ratio, and
represents 15% of
the total risk
assessment value.
Liquidity | Days This ratio (CURRENT This ratio measures | 30 10.0%
Expense | calculates ASSETS - the Liquidity of an
in the number | CURRENT LIAB) | organization. A
Working | of day's / ((REVENUE - ratio equal to or
Capital expense that | OPERATING higher than the
the working | INCOME - benchmark is
capital can DEPRECIATION) | considered
support. /365) favorable. The

benchmark is
expressed in
“number of days"
and represents
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Table A - Risk Analysis Assessment Ratios Matrix

Percentag
e of Total
Risk
Name of How it is What the Ratio Benchmar | Assessme
Category Ratio Description Calculated Measures k nt
15% of the total risk
assessment value.
Liquidity | Days of This ratio (ACCOUNTS This ratio measures | 30 10.0%
Revenue | calculates RECEIVABLE) / | the performance of
In the number | (REVENUE/365) | the accounts
Accounts | of days of receivable function
Receivabl | revenue that and the timeliness
e arein of revenue
accounts collection. A ratio
receivable. equal to or lower
than the
benchmark is
considered
favorable. The
benchmark is
expressed in days.
Operating | Return on | This ratiois | INCREASE IN This ratio measures | 5% 10.0%
Results Equity a NET ASSETS / the Operating
representati | NET ASSETS Results of an
on of the organization. A
increase or ratio equal to or
decrease in higher than the
net assets benchmark is
from the considered
prior year. favorable. The
benchmark is
expressed as a
percentage and
represents 10% of
the total risk
assessment value.
Exhibit A Contractor Initials _ﬂ
Page 7 of 10 Date _ﬁim)‘/




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator

Exhibit A

Table A - Risk Analysis Assessment Ratios Matrix

Percentag
e of Total
Risk
Name of How it is What the Ratio Benchmar | Assessme
Category Ratio Description Calculated Measures Kk nt
Operating | Operation | This ratio OPERATING This ratio measures | 3% 10.0%
Results Income to | compares INCOME / the Operating
Revenue | the current REVENUE Results of an
year's organization. A
operating ratio equal to or
income with higher than the
the current benchmark is
year's considered
revenue. favorable. The
benchmark is
expressed as a
percentage and
represents 10% of
the total risk
assessment value.
Operating | Cash This ratio (INCREASE IN This ratio measures | 2% 10.0%
Results Flow % of | calculates NET ASSETS + | the Operating
Revenue | the DEPRECIATION) | Results of an
company's / REVENUE organization. A
cash flow as ratio equal to or
a higher than the
percentage benchmark is
of revenue. considered
favorable. The
benchmark is
expressed as a
percentage and
represents 10% of
the total risk
assessment value.
Leverage | Debt to This ratio (TOTAL ASSETS | This ratio measures | 0.7:1 5.0%
Equity compares - NET Leverage (Relative
total debtto | ASSETS)/NET Debt Level). A
equity. ASSETS ratio equal to or
lower than the
benchmark is
considered
favorable. The
benchmark is
expressed as a
ratio and
represents 5% of
the total risk
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Table A - Risk Analysis Assessment Ratios Matrix

Category

Name of
Ratio

Description

How it is
Calculated

What the Ratio
Measures

Benchmar
k

Percentag
e of Total
Risk
Assessme
nt

assessment value.

Leverage

Long
Term
Debt to
Equity

This ratio
compares
long term
debt to
equity.

LONG TERM
DEBT / NET
ASSETS

This ratio measures
Leverage (Relative
Debt Level). A
ratio equal to or
lower than the
benchmark is
considered
favorable. The
benchmark is
expressed as a
percentage and
represents 5% of
the total risk
assessment value.

100%

5.0%

Leverage

Debt
Ratio

This ratio
compares
total debt to
total assets.

(TOTAL ASSETS
-NET .
ASSETS)/TOTAL
ASSETS

This ratio measures
Leverage (Relative
Debt Level). A
ratio equal to or
lower than the
benchmark is
considered
favorable. The
benchmark is
expressed as a
percentage and
represents 10% of
the total risk
assessment value.

50%

10.0%

Reserves

Cash
Flow to
Total
Debt

This ratio
compares
cash flow to
total debt.

(OP. SURPLUS +
DEPRECIATION)
/ (TOTAL
ASSETS - NET
ASSETS)

This ratio measures
Reserves. A ratio
equal to or lower
than the
benchmark is
considered
favorable. The
benchmark is
expressed as a
percentage and
represents 10% of
the total risk

assessment value.

5%

10.0%
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Exhibit A

Table A - Risk Analysis Assessment Ratios Matrix

Percentag
e of Total
Risk
Name of How itis What the Ratio Benchmar | Assessme
Category Ratio Description Calculated Measures k nt
Reserves | Days This ratio NET ASSETS / This ratio measures | 90 10.0%
Expense | calculates ((REVENUE - Reserves. A ratio
in the number | OPERATING equal to or lower
Available | of day's INCOME - than the
Net expense that | DEPRECIATION) | benchmark is
Assets the net /365) considered
assets of the favorable. The
company benchmark is
can support. expressed in
"number of days"
and this represents
10% of the total risk
assessment value.
100.0%

13. Agreement Elements
The Agreement between the parties shall consist of the following: General Provisions (P-
37), Exhibit A Scope of Services, Exhibit B Purchase of Services, Exhibit B-1, Exhibit C
Special Provisions, Exhibit C-1 Additional Special Provisions, Exhibit D Certification
Regarding Drug-Free Workplace, Exhibit E Certification Regarding Lobbying, Exhibit F

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters,
Exhibit G Certification Regarding the American’s With Disabilities Act Compliance,

Exhibit H Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke, Exhibit | Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Business Associate Agreement, Exhibit J

Certification Regarding The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act

Compliance. In the event of any conflict or contradiction between or among the
Agreement documents, the documents shall control in the above order of precedence.

Exhibit A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refer 7 Systems Support Administrator

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8,
of the General Provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the services provided and the
expenses incurred by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. The Contractor will submit invoices on forms provided by the Department

3. Payment for said services shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement. Payment shall be made as follows:
The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

The invoice must be submitted to:

Laurie Heath

Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. The Contractor will have forty-five (45) days from the end of the contract period to submit to
the Department final invoices for payment. Any adjustments made to a prior invoice will
need to be accompanied by supporting documentation.

5. Reimbursement for expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item budget
shown in Exhibit B-1. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the Department
in accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations.

6. The Contract is funded with funds from the following Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #'s, for the provision of services pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services:

e #93.778, Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services, Medicaid;

e #93.667, Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Children & Families, Social Services Block Grant;

e #93.052, Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Community Living, Family Caregiver Support Title Il E;

e #93.324, Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services, State Health Insurance Assistance Program;

e #93.778, Federal Agency Department of Health and Humans Services; Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services, Balancing Incentive Program

6.1. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in
compliance with the funding requirements.

Exhibit B Contractor Initials § ‘
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refer 7 Systems Support Administrator

Exhibit B

7. The General provisions (P-37) Section 1.6 Account Numbers are as follows:

Grant State Account Number

New Hampshire Family Caregiver Support Title lll E | 05-95-48-481010-78720000-570-500928
State Health Insurance Assistance Program 05-95-48-481010-89250000-102-500731
Social Services Block Grant 05-95-48-481010-92550000-545-500387
New Hampshire State General Funds 05-95-48-481010-95650000-102-500731
Medicaid 05-95-48-481510-61800000-550-500398
Balancing Incentive Program 05-95-49-490510-29850000-102-500731

8. The Contractor shall comply with the necessary steps established by the Department for
making payments to vendors using Electronic Funds Transter (EFT).

9. The DHHS may require certain payments returned to the State of New Hampshire if: 1) the
final reconciliation of the payments made by BEAS under this agreement show that the
payments exceeded the actual units served; 2) services are not being provided in
accordance with the requirements and scope of services in Exhibit A; and 3) Should BEAS
choose to execute the right to terminate the contract agreement as stated in Exhibit C-1
Additional Special Provisions.

10. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of required reports, or Contractor Site Review Reports, the State
may review costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date. Upon such
review the State shall disallow any costs incurred that are not determined to be allowable or
are determined to be served to ineligible clients and shall, by written notice specifying the
disallowed costs, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows
costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs.

3
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Exhibit B-1

BUDGET FORM
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD
Bidder Name: Granite United Way
Budget Request for: Refer 7 Database System Support Administrator
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: Effective date of contract - June 30, 2015
i3 B i a0 o Yt
e Ut g T SN e R £ A
1. Total Salary/Wages $ 50,8771 $ 50881 % 55,965
2. Employee Benefits $ 13,0721 $ 1,307 $ 14,379
3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -
4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - $ -
5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational 3 1,000] $ 100] $ 1,100
Lab $ - g - $ -
Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -
Medical $ - $ - $ -
Office $ 2200] % 2201 $ 2,420
6. Travel 3 2,300] § 2301 % 2,530
7. Occupancy $ - g - g -
8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -
Telephone $ 660 $ 66| % 726
Postage $ - $ - $ -
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ - $
Insurance $ - $ - $ -
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ -
9. Software $ - $ - $ -
10. Marketing/Communications b 50001 $ 500] § 5,500
11. Staff Education and Training $ 6,000 $ 600 $ 6,600
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ - $ -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ - $ -
4 - _ q _
; —Is —Is -
$ - $ - $ -
TOTAL { 81,109 8,111 ] ¢ 89,220 |
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%
Revised 01/22/13 “
Exhibit B-1 Contractors Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include ali
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials g ;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Penod:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolis, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govermmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information conceming a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor’s responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on wiitten consent of the recipient, his

attomey or guardian.
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Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Pian (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(¢) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’'s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials 1\
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials ‘ ;
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Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in par,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or madification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment unti! such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Pian to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the foliowing
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 Comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence with
additional general liability umbrella coverage of not less than $1,000,000.

4. Contract Extension: The Department reserves the right to extend the completion date of the contract
for up to two years to be exercised by mutual agreements by the parties, upon availability of funding,
acceptable performance of the Statement of Work, and subsequent approval by the Governor and

Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;,
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: ()<‘M Sc< OV\ ‘\T ,.( ("\)‘3

§-/3- Zory M

Date K{ame Patrick M. Tufts MSW
Title:  pregident and CEO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a matenal representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: dcc\y\‘\u Q :\(-‘J( (._‘j

8- 13-zory %Mﬁ/}

Date ame

Title: //Lw k/&./(t{ (zo
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

" o«

” 4

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials E ‘
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals: '

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily exctuded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (i)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year periad preceding this application/proposal had one or maore public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this propasal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: c (‘C—d«;\n D-—\.jvui ("Uﬂ

_B-r3-7ny WZMQ\
ame:

Date .
Tite: pAecs 7 CED
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b}) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act inciudes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federa! financial assistance. It does notinclude
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equa! protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or six
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against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: &(‘Cc’\‘.& UV\{‘\*«-A (’Véﬂ

8—/3--70#/ M/g;,¢/é
Date Namé:

Title: 1‘?@5/}/'&;\/4y C£O
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local govemments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Contractor Name: Ccc»—x:\c U‘*:'\tv( L‘/‘j

§-/3-zory M/rﬂ

Date Name: .
Title: /;/—f/ brr e S
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

i “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. . i
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I.  “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
n. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

C. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials g ;
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected heaith information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

C. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhibit 1 Contractor Initials %
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10} business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

i- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wntten request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Assaciate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

K. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business E
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(4)

(5)

(6)

3/2014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. E

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement .
Page 5 of 6 Date ({ ’&S’ ZON



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Degl of Hesth ¢ Hupmen Seru;ces {/57/7/% %/74’/ WS

The State Name-6f the C;t?m /
\B\u NG /24/ %

Signature of Auih ized\Representative  3fgnature of Authofized Representative

Diene Lo s TF TS

Name of Authorizéll R&predentative Name of Authorized Representative
DWGC:JO( //5/;%77/6/ o

Title of Authorized Representative Titte of Authorized Representative
%1y €13~ 20/

Date Date

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials g\

Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement -~
Page 6 of 6 Date g - \3 /’ZC\‘{



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SPeNoOoOAWN =

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: &a\w\ "C( U«‘\TJ (’Uﬂ

£ /3~ 201y p«//A/A

Date e. Patrick M. Tufte-MSYWW
Title: President and CEO

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials ?<
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

CUMDHHS/110713 ‘ Page 1 of 2 Date gé /\Moq



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 196484990

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: : Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials ?(

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date % - (21 7_,(1"’



State of Netw Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Statt of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Granite United Way is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed March
30, 1927. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is concerned,

having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, 1 hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 9™ day of May A.D. 2014

g e

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Corporation without Seal)

L, \)e/em% V@l 'fu Y , do hereby certify that:

(Name of Clerk of gk Corporation: cannol be contract sigiatory)

1. 1am a duly elected Clerk of Granite United Way
(Corporation Namc)
2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duIy adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of
the Corporation duly held on

(Datm
RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting
through its Department of Health and Human Services, , for the provision of
Refer 7 database administration services.

RESOLVED: Thatthe __ Patrick M. Tufts
{Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgomg resolutipns have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of
the _J>™ day of &[42 ust ,2014 .
ct Signed)

(Date Cont
4. _Patrick M. Tufts is the duly elected
President and CEO
(Name of Contract Signatory) [ Title of Coniract Signatory)

of the Corporation. ﬁ { l Z

(Signature of Clerk of the Corporation;

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of &@ m@@%)
; th Mz%ﬁ_

The forgomg instrument was acknowledged before me this /. é day of

o Jecemy Veilley M }/W,JW

Notary/but liciJustice of the Peace)

(HOTARY S



N
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 7/31/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER m‘” Sara Hartshorn
THE ROWLEY AGENCY INC. PHONE  ~ " (603)224-2562 [ TR noy (693 224-8012
139 Loudon Road ums'és_;shartshom@rowleyagency.com
P.O. Box 511 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Concord NH 03302-0511 | mnsurera:Hanover Ins Co.
INSURED INSURER B :
Granite United Way INSURER € :
46 South Main Street INSURER D :
INSURERE :
Concord NH 03301 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:14-15 All REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDU CED BY PAID CLAIMS.

R TYPE OF INSURANCE el WD POLICY NUMBER WWM UMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
[ DAMAGE TO RENTED
F}? COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY MIS| 2 occuTencs) $ 100,000
A lCLAlMs-MADE OCCUR HV900337103 1/1/2014 [/1/2015 | \epexp(anyaneperson) | $ 5,000
| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
|| GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 2,000,000
POLICY l FRO- l LOC $
TOMBINED SINGLE LIMTT
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea scogeny) s 1,000,000
A | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ﬁbgrggweo ig;lggULED FBV9003371 03 1/1/2014 [/1/2015 BODILY INJURY (Per accident)] §
x| NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| & | HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per agcident]
$
X [uvsreLauas | X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
EXCESS UAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 1,000,000
pep | X | reventions o UHV9003210-03 h/1/2014 }1/1/2015 s
WORKERS COMPENSATION X | STAT. OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN
é'é‘;, ggg;g&gggmemgg@zcwvs NIA £.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
(Mandatory In NH) L'M9968°2-03 R/1/2014 B/1/2015 |g| piSEASE - EAEMPLOYEY § 500,000
f yes, describe und
DEGS%Rdﬁ’s'ﬁ’ONuOFgPERATJONS below A Ststes: NH E L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITTS 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space Is required) .
Covering operations of the Nam Insured during the policy period. The insurance coverage is for all

locations including 22 Concord St., Manchester, NH.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
. ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

State of New Hampshire

Dept. of Health and Human Services

Contracts and Procurement Unit AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301
Sara Hartshorn/SBH ‘/gﬂM—/ gé/ﬂo‘/)’»ébﬂ_/
ACORD 25 (2010/05) © 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights reserved.

INS028 1701005V m1 Tha ACORN nama and lann are ronictarod marke ~f ACNRN




LIVE UNITED

Granite United Way

MISSION STATEMENT

Granite United Way's mission is to improve the quality of people’s lives by bringing together the caring
power of communities.

Granite United Way

Mer-irnach Conaty Sarber Regiea North Zoundry Hortham Region Jppar Velioy Central Reg er ‘Ahels Village Zanoll Courty Unitsd

43 Sevth Wain Stmet 22 Coacorc Street 30.8a 311 96 Nain Strest 2 Tectrolozy Drive 133 Soath Main St. 258 {ighlend Seet 4484 Whits Nin {lighway
Concad, NI 03301 Manchester, K.t 02101  citthetor Nil 03561  Dara, Ml 053570 W Leberor, M) 03764 _azenia, Ml 00245 Symwth, W C3264 Tamworth, N 03885
¥13.224 2535 ¥)3.625.6938 5034441555 200.732.3343 513.298.8499 $3.132.112 513.535.3720 3320139



- NATHAN‘ WECHSLER & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & BUSINESS ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Granite United Way
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Granite United Way as of March 31, 2013, and the
related staternents of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. :

Audifor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finandal
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinjon.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Granite United Way as of March 31, 2013, and the results of its operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year
then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 12 to the financial statements, on January 1, 2013, Granite United Way acquired the assets and
assumed the liabilities of Lakes Region United Way based on Granite United Way's efforts to share resources and reduce
overhead in order to increase impact in the communities the United Way serves. The assets received exceeded liabilities
assumed by $1,688,481 which has been recorded as an inherent contribution and reported separately in the statement of
activities and changes in net assets.

Nahin Weeksba l‘, Cou la\}/

Concord, New Hampshire
July 15, 2013

70 Commercial Street, Cuite 41 infe
naag

Concord, NH 83301
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended March 31, 2013

Support and revenues
Support:
Campaign revenue:

Total contributions pledged

Less donor designations

Less provision for uncollectible pledges

Add prior years' excess provision for uncollectible

pledges taken into income in current year

Net campaign revenue

Sponsors and other contributions
Grant revenue

Homeless Service Center contributions
In-kind contributions

Program contributions

Total support

Other revenue:
Administrative fees
Unused grant awarded in the prior year
Rental income
Miscellaneous income

Total support and revenues

Net assets released from restrictions for
satisfaction of program and time restrictions

Expenses:

Program services:
Allocated to agencies
Other program services

Support services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses
Decrease in net assets before other activities

Other activities:
Excess of assets acquired over liabilities assumed in
acquisition of Lakes Region United Way
Increase in value of beneficial interest in trusts, net
of fees $10,893
Realized and unrealized gains on investments
Investment income

Total other activities

Net increase in net assets
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year

Net dssets (deficit), end of year

Temporarily Restricted Permanently
Unrestricted Campaign Endowment Restricted Total
S - $ 6460383 $ - - $ 6460383
- (1,410476) - - (1,410,476)
- (363,005) - - (363,005)
133,993 - - - 133,993
133,993 4,686,902 - - 4,820,895
28,709 205,673 - - 234,382
- 70,273 - - 70,273
- 60,365 - - 60,365
36,053 - - - 36,053
- 6,873 - - 6,873
198,755 5,030,086 - - 5,228,841
145,358 - - - 145,358
10,000 - - 10,000
29,605 - - - 29,605
2363 - - - 2363
386,081 5,030,086 - - 5416,167
5,151,840 (5,151,840) - - -
5,537,921 (121,754) - - 5416,167
3,535,527 - - - 3,535,527
1,292,337 - - - 1,292,337
860,099 - - - 860,099
588,959 - - - 588,959
6,276,922 - - - 6,276,922
(739,001) (121,754) - - (860,755)
1,238,462 329,154 20,468 100,397 1,688,481
- - 54,687 - 54,687
7,040 - 2,325 - 9,365
109,745 - 358 - 110,103
1,355,247 329,154 77,838 100,397 1,862,636
616,246 207,400 77,838 100,397 1,001,881
(905,401) 2,622,784 1,538,169 - 3,255,552
$ (289,155)$ 2,830,184 $ 1,616,007 100397 $ 4,257,433

Page 3



GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended March 31, 2013
Program Management

services  and general Fundraising Total
Salaries and wages $ 569,340 $ 496,715 $ 307,409 $ 1,373,464
Payroll taxes 42,131 40,491 25,124 107,746
Employee fringe benefits 65,418 57,639 35,475 158,532
Employer 403(b) contribution 20,865 19,970 12,381 53,216
Total salaries and related benefits 697,754 614,815 380,389 1,692,958
Occupancy 47,752 49,223 30,944 127,919
211 expenses 106,203 - - 106,203
Grant expenses-Drug Free Grants 47,949 - - 47,949
Other program services (See Note 15) 86,711 - - 86,711
Telephone, communications and technology 25,084 25,857 16,254 67,195
Publications, printing and campaign expenses - - 64,528 64,528
United Way Worldwide dues 22,980 23,689 14,892 61,561
Homeless service center expenses 60,120 - - 60,120
Volunteer income tax assistance expenses 50,716 - - 50,716
Supplies and office expense 14,048 14,481 9,103 37,632
In-kind expenses 8,473 11,017 16,563 36,053
Travel 12,025 12,395 7,792 32,212
Professional services - 31,479 - 31,479
Merger expenses 10,406 10,726 6,743 27,875
Conferences, training and meetings 8,774 9,044 5,685 23,503
Insurance 8,574 8,837 5,555 22,966
Miscellaneous 8,488 8,750 5,500 22,738
Other dues and awards 6,857 7,068 4,443 18,368
Community needs assessment 13,166 - - 13,166
Special events 4,431 4,568 2,872 11,871
Share the Warmth expenses 11,000 - - 11,000
Investment fees 4,030 4,154 2,611 10,795
Community impact expenses 10,518 - - 10,518
Postage 3,771 3,887 2,444 10,102
Literacy Program initiative 3,000 - - 3,000

Total expenses before interest
and depreciation 1,272,830 839,990 576,318 2,689,138
Interest expense 1,125 1,161 730 3,016
Depreciation 18,382 18,948 11,911 49,241
Total functional expenses $ 1,292,337 & 860,099 $ 588,959 $ 2,741,395

Page 4



GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended March 31, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
to net cash used in operating activities:
Excess of assets acquired over liabilities assumed in
acquisition of Lakes Region United Way
Realized and unrealized gain on investments
Depreciation
Increase in prepaid and reimbursable expenses
Decrease in contributions receivable
Decrease in grants receivable
Increase in value of beneficial interest in assets held by others
Decrease in allocated annual campaign
Decrease in funds held for others
Decrease in grant payable
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in accrued expenses
Decrease in deferred revenue
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from acquisition of Lakes Region
United Way
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Net cash provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of long-term debt

Net decrease in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Investments, contributions receivable, other assets and
property and equipment acquired

Assumption of liabilities through acquisition

1,001,881

(1,688,481)
(9,365)
49,241
(30,523)
102,433
36,732
(54,687)
(22,787)
(17,274)
(179,394)
47,642
26,885
(21,106)

(758,803)

429,687
(8,650)
45,143

(81,302)

384,878

(2,493)

(376,418)

1,839,862

1,463,444

1,762,687

503,893
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Granite United Way

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Gary Long
Public Service of New Hampshire / Northeast Utilities
Board Chair

Scott Aronson
Unit4 Business Software

William D. Bedor, CPA
Bedor Management & Investments
2014 Secretary and North Country Office Local Community Impact Chair

Jeremy Veilleux
Principal, Baker Newman Noyes
2014 Treasurer

Dean J. Christon
Executive Director, New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority
Southern Region Local Community Impact Chair

Gordon Ehret
Hypertherm, Inc.

Julia Griffin
Town of Hanover

Stephen Hackley
Senior Vice President, Greater Boston Region, Comcast

Guy Lopez
Gorham Paper and Tissue

Maryann McCormack
Campton, NH

John Mercier
Pentucket Bank

Heidi Nadeau
H.L Turner Group

Nannu Nobis
CEO, Nobis Engineering

Sean Owen
President & CEO, wedi
2014 Marketing & Communications Chair

LIVE UNITED
United 5
Way ,



LIVE UNITED

Granite United Way

BOARD OF DIRECTORS-Page 2

Steven A. Paris, MD
Medical Director, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Manchester
{immediate Past Chair

Mark Primeau
President, Bank of New Hampshire
Vice Chair

Ronald Reed
Vice President, Lincoln Financial Group

Jeffery Savage
President & CEOQ, Franklin Savings Bank

James Scammon
Executive Vice President, Granite Group Benefits, LLC

Cathleen Schmidt
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, McLane, Graf, Raulerson & Middleton, PA

William Sherry
Windham, NH

Gary Shirk
Bovie Screen Process Printing

Evan Smith
Vice President, General Manager, Hypertherm

Rodney Tenney
Merrimack County Office Local Community Impact Chair

Patrick M. Tufts, MSW
President & CEQ, Granite United Way

Curt Uehlein
COO of Apoolo Global

Steven C. Webb
Market President, New Hampshire, TD Bank



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Patrick Tufts President and CEO $140,000 0% 0.00

Jack Terrill Senior Vice President for $95,000 0% 0.00
Community Impact

Maria Gudinas Vice President for Resource $83,000 0% 0.00
Development

Cindy Read Chief Financial Officer $80,500 0% 0.00




Professional Profile

I'am a high energy, very optimistic management professional with exceptional interpersonal and
communication skills with a successful background in customer service.

Skills Summary
«  Strong customer service background ' «  Call Center Management
« Data management and research «  Public Presentations
«  Staff Management «  Project Management

Professional Experience

2-1-1 New Hampshire — Manchester, NH November, 2007 - Present

Program Director

Manage 24/7 inbound information and referral call center serving those in need of assistance
connecting to local, state, and federal human service resources such as housing, food,
clothing, heat, medical and mental health care, drug and alcohol treatment, and legal
assistance.

Train and supervise all call center staff ,

Monitoring of call volume and preparation of reports on community needs statewide
Maintain quality customer service standards with both consumers and service providers
Oversee 2-1-1 NH website

Work with United Ways of NH on marketing and fund development initiatives

Provide outreach to the public, community, and state agencies and organizations
Develop program procedures

Service inbound 2-1-1 callers as needed

Community Services Council of New Hampshire/NH Helpline — Pembroke, NH  June, 2004- July, 2006

AIRS Certified Information & Referral Specialist

Responsible for answering calls, assessing the callers need and providing information in a

timely and efficient manner

Operated a multi-line phone system, as well as TTY for callers in need of social service and

basic living necessity resources

Researched and updated resource information into the Helpline Resonrce Database

Servicéd callers of the NH Homeléss Hotlini€ in need of inforinationand referral to shelter, "~ ~
transportation and other needed services )
Recorded abuse and neglect reports and coordinated foster care placements for DCYF during
overnight hours

Answered for all of the domestic violence agencies statewide to provide crisis intervention



USI New England - Manchester, NH August, 2001 — March, 2004
Administrative Assistant
« Managed, filed, and scanned all processed documents into a customized imaging system
«  Provided front desk reception, including operating the multi-line switchboard
» Completed assigned projects in a professional and timely fashion

o  Multi-tasked successfully on a daily basis

Oxford Health Plans-Hooksett, NH February, 1999 — July, 2001

Provider & Member Service Associate

» Answered inbound calls from providers and health plan members.

» Resolved inquiries from providers and members regarding
benefits, medical authorizations, polices, procedures, and protocols

»  Consistently maintained and exceeded Oxford’s standards and
Quality Assurance scores for quality customer service

»  Proficiently operated multiple databases and phone lines to
efficiently answer caller inquiries

PC & Mac Connection — Keene, NH May, 1996 — July, 1998

Inbound Sales Associate

« Responsible for servicing inbound computer hardware and
software sales calls

o  Advised customers on the appropriate software and hardware for
their needs

o Utilized a combination of databases to process sales orders

»  Consistently provided quality customer service to all callers

Education
KEENE STATE COLLEGE - Keene, New Hampshire
Bachelor of Science, Graphic & Art Design 1998

UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF RIPON & YORK STTJOHN = York, England~ =
Intemnational Exchange Program, 1997 .



Meredith N. Stidham

Education

Experience

Master of Social Work : September 2007 — Mgy 2011
University of New Hampshire, Durham, New Hampshite
Extended Coursework in History : January 2004 - June 2004

Grand Valley State University, Allendale, Michigan

Bachelor of Arts in English and Psychology
University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Michigan

Septernber 2000- December 2003

Assistant Vice President, Community Impact Operations, Granite United Way (May

2011 to present)

» Coordinated grant allocation process through volunteer-led community review process in
Greater Manchester

. Designed and implemented web-based grant allocation and outcomes reporting systems

. Supervised and managed staffs for various direct service initiatives, including 2-1-1 NH

. Developed literacy initiative with school districts to assist struggling readers throughout the
State of New Hatnpshire

. Assisted in grant writing and reporting efforts actoss five regions, including initiative
specific requests for Community Schools and Volunteer Income Tax Preparation efforts

« Launched the Emerging Leaders Society, focused on engaging young professionals through
professional development, community engagement and volunteerism

. Provided supetvision and support for graduate interns through the University of New
Hampshire’s Master of Social Work program

Adjunct Faculty Instructor, Great Bay Community College (Septernber 2010 — present)

. Developed and executed online curriculum for online sociology and political science
courses

. Expanded research and writing components of online courses to prepare students for
changing college standards

. Connected course content with recent research findings and application of theoretical
frameworks in current events

United Way Inten (September 2010 — May 2011)
« Facilitated the development of employee-led fundraising campaigns in a variety of
workplace settings throughout Greater Manchester
. Assisted in the writing of a grant proposal to fund needs assessment research in the areas of
education and technology : - . .. e e e e
+ Coordinated the community review of education grant proposals with volunteers
throughout the Greater Manchester region
. Supported conversations between stakeholders and volunteers regarding incteased
cooperation and synergy in education and after-school programming in Manchester -



Program Support Assistant in Child Welfare Training (November 2010 — June 2011)

« Otrganized and updated training schedule and materials for child protection workers
throughout the State of New Hampshire

. Developed and integrated protocols for summarizing and delivering evaluations of trainings
and trainers for child protection workers

« Created curricalum for additional supervisor training for the State of New Hampshire

Social Studies Teacher, Salem High School (September 2004 — June 2010)

- Executed units for freshman, sophomore, and junior levels involving geography, primary
source documents, research, and essay writing.

. Prepared students for the College Board’s Advanced Placement Psychology Exam

. Encouraged student involvement through class advising

Intern, Structured Outpatient Addiction Program (September 2008 — April 2009)
- Provided individual and group psychoeducational treatment for adolescents involved with

substance abuse.
« Coordinated client treatment with other team members and members of the community,
including educational institutions and probation staff.

Technological . Microsoft Word, Excel, Access, and PowerPoint
Skills + Adobe Acrobat

. Database Design and Data Management

. Computerized Statistical Evaluations (SPSS)

« Blackboard Educadonal Software



Tina M. Ricketts|

Summary:
Over 15 years of public interaction experience, CRS certified, extensive

experience utilizing Refer 7 database, strong organizational skills, and problem
solving skills.

Education:
Jan 1998 - Feb 2000 University of Houston, Houston TX

Majored in Psychology

Jan 1996 - Dec 1997 University of Texas of the Permian Basin, Odessa TX

Majored in Psychology and Sociology

Aug 1995 - Dec 1995 Stephen F. Austin State University, Nacogdoches, TX

Majored in Psychology and Spanish

Graduated 1995 Galena Park High School Galena Park, TX

Honors diploma
Graduated Magna Cum Laude - 15" of 265

Career Experience:

2-1-1NH

PO Box 211

Manchester, NH 03105 ’

Associate Director and Resource Database Manager

10/15/07 - Present

Obtained Alliance of Information and Referral Systems (AIRS) certification -
CIRS (Certified Information and Referral Specialist) and CRS certification
(Certified Resource Specialist)

Responsibilities include:

Responsible for maintaining information for over 1300 agencies offering
nearly 3000 services

Research new resources within the community and enter in database.

Review existing resources for validity

Created and maintain an internal website for team information sharing
Attend AIRS conferences and other trainings to broaden knowledge base and
network



City of Odessa, TX

119 W 4™

Odessa, TX 79762

Public Safety Communications Dispatcher lll
11/2003 - 7/2007

Responsibilities included:

Answering incoming calls to E911, Police Department Administration, and
Fire Department Administration lines for a city with and estimated
population of 93,000

Proficient in the use of Emergency Medical Dispatch card set with quality
assurace scores in high 90’s of 100

Highly familiar with fire apparatus

Certified fire dispatch trainer

Dispatched and tracking of medical helicopter

Created training manual for dispatch of medical helicopter

OneTravel.com
Airline Contract Manager

Began at entry level and quickly proceded up through 6 levels of promotions
Given full control of entering and maintaining airline contract database
Prepared weekly reports for high level executives detailing status of
contracts and sales figures.

Tested software thouroughly before release to public

Answered customer service emails and phone calls and arbitrated disputes
and resolved complaints

Fulfilled sweepstakes packages and coordinated trips for winners
Represented company on training trips to Nice, France, Houston, TX and
Miami, FL to bring back new technology and innovations for online
operations.



